RESOLUTION NO. 2022/23-06

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT IMPOSING THE DISTRICT'S LAST, BEST, AND FINAL PROPOSAL ON THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS LOCAL 6262 PURSUANT TO GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 3540, et seq.

WHEREAS, the Santa Clarita Community College District ("District") has recognized the American Federation of Teachers Local 6262, ("AFT") as the exclusive representative for the bargaining unit comprising all rank and file adjunct faculty;

WHEREAS, beginning in March of 2021, the District and AFT negotiation teams have met and engaged in extensive negotiations over the terms of a successor collective bargaining agreement;

WHEREAS, the District and AFT negotiation teams have met many times and have agreed on several articles of the successor collective bargaining agreement;

WHEREAS, notwithstanding that the District and AFT negotiation teams have met and engaged in extensive negotiations, the District and AFT remain significantly apart on three remaining terms;

WHEREAS, on April 1, 2022 the Public Employment Relations Board ("PERB") determined the existence of an impasse between the parties. After participating in the mediation process on April 19, 2022, the mediator certified the matter for factfinding pursuant to Government Code section 3548.1;

WHEREAS, AFT filed a request for factfinding with PERB pursuant to Government Code section 3548.1;

WHEREAS, on June 20, 2022, the District negotiation team and the AFT negotiation team participated in a factfinding hearing by the three-member PERB factfinding panel pursuant to Government Code section 3548.2;

WHEREAS, the report of the findings, conclusions and advisory recommendations of the factfinding panel were made publicly available on August 29, 2022, on the District's publicly available website (https://www.canyons.edu/administration/board/notices.php) pursuant to Government Code Section 3548.3;

WHEREAS, the parties have concluded the impasse resolution procedures as required by all applicable statutes, rules, regulations, and agreements;

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees has considered all recommendations from the factfinding panel and concluded that it is appropriate to implement the District's Last, Best, Final Proposal to AFT including all tentative agreements reached during negotiations; and

WHEREAS, under such circumstances, Government Code sections 3548.2 and 3548.3 authorize the Board of Trustees to implement the District's Last, Best, and Final Proposal.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT that the following terms and conditions of

employment of members of the AFT bargaining unit shall be implemented as set forth in Part A below, immediately upon adoption of this RESOLUTION:

PART A - Imposition of Terms and Conditions

The terms and conditions for employees in the American Federation of Teachers, Local 6262, attached and incorporated as Exhibit "A," are hereby imposed and adopted.

PART B. Scope of Imposition

Section 1. The only terms related to wages, hours or other conditions of employment within the scope of representation that are imposed by this Resolution are those expressly set forth in Part A of this Resolution. All other terms and conditions within the scope of representation shall be as agreed upon by the parties unless hereafter modified in accordance with applicable law.

Section 2. Nothing in this Resolution shall be construed as depriving the AFT of its right to meet and confer on matters within the scope of representation, whether or not those matters are included in this Resolution, as required or permitted by law.

RESOLUTION number 2022/23-06 was duly adopted by the following vote, at a regular meeting held on November 9, 2022:

AYES:	
NOES:	
ABSENT:	
ABSTENTIONS:	
Dr. Edel Alonso	
Board President	

Santa Clarita Community College District

Part-time Faculty UnitedAmerican Federation of Teachers

Local 6262

AGREEMENT
Terms and
Working Conditions



July 1, 20<u>20</u>17 – June 30, 202<u>22</u>0

Available on the Intranet to District employees at:

https://intranet.canyons.edu/offices/AFT/



TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE 1:	AGREEMENT	5
ARTICLE 2:	RECOGNITION	е
ARTICLE 3:	DISTRICT RIGHTS	7
ARTICLE 4:	AFT RIGHTS	8
ARTICLE 5:	ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY	10
ARTICLE 6: A	SSIGNMENT AND SCHEDULING	12
ARTICLE 7:	PERSONNEL FILES	20
ARTICLE 8:	EVALUATIONS	21
ARTICLE 9:	LEAVES	25
ARTICLE 10:	TOTAL COMPENSATION	29
ARTICLE 11:	WORKING CONDITIONS	32
ARTICLE 12:	NON-DISCRIMINATION	34
ARTICLE 13:	GRIEVANCE	35
ARTICLE 14:	HIRING PROCESS FOR FACULTY CONTRACT POSITIONS	39
ARTICLE 15:	INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS	40
ARTICLE 16:	RETIREMENT ARTICLE	41
ARTICLE 17:	SAVINGS PROVISION	42
ARTICLE 18:	ACADEMIC FREEDOM	43
ARTICLE 19:	PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	45
ARTICLE 20:	OFFICE HOURS	46
ARTICLE 21:	NONCREDIT FACULTY	48
ARTICLE 22:	DISCIPLINE	53
APPENDIX A:	ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULES	54
APPENDIX B:	CLASSROOM EVALUATION REPORTS	88
APPENDIX B:	ONLINE VISITATION AND EVALUATION REPORT	92
APPENDIX B:	ONLINELIVE CLASSROOM EVALUATION REPORT	96
APPENDIX C:	BOARD POLICY 4030: ACADEMIC FREEDOM	LOC
APPENDIX D:	PROFESSIONALISM REPORT	L04
APPENDIX E:	VISITATION AND EVALUATION REPORT FOR NON-INSTRUCTIONAL FACULTY	L07
APPENDIX F:	STUDENT EVALUATION SURVEY	L10
APPENDIX G:	DISTRICT-COMPENSATED COMMITTEES	L12
APPENDIX H	SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS COMPENSATION1	L13
APPENDIX I:	AFT TOTAL COMPENSATION CALCULATIONS1	L15
APPENDIX J:	DOCUMENTS TO FINALIZE NEGOTIATIONS FOR 2018-2019 AND 2019-2020	119
2017 - 2020 <i>A</i>	AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE	L25

ARTICLE 1: AGREEMENT

- A. This agreement is made and entered into by and between the Board of Trustees of the SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT (hereinafter designated as the "District" or "Board") and the PART-TIME FACULTY UNITED (hereinafter referred to as the "AFT"), an employee union of Local 6262 of the American Federation of Teachers. The term of this Agreement shall be from July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020.
- B. During the 2018-19 and 2019-20 fiscal years, Article 10 Total Compensation, will be reopened. In addition, articles may be reopened by mutual agreement.
- C. This agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 10.7, Sections 3540-3549.3 of the Government Code.
- <u>D.</u> This Agreement is not intended to modify or replace the rights of each faculty member in the bargaining unit under the law. Both parties agree to comply with state and/or federal law.
- D-E. All terms and of the 2017-2020 agreement remain in effect through June 30, 2022 modified only by the terms and conditions imposed by November 9, 2022 resolution of the Board after exhaustion of the bargaining process and impasse procedures incorporated herein..

ARTICLE 2: RECOGNITION

- A. The Santa Clarita Community College District hereby confirms its recognition of the Part-Time Faculty United, American Federation of Teachers Local 6262, as the exclusive representative for all temporary academic (credit and non-credit) employees This article excludes employees (probationary and permanent faculty, management, supervisory, and classified employees) performing faculty service beyond their full-time assignment, faculty teaching not for credit classes, and Child Development permit teachers.
- B. The AFT and the District shall have the right to seek unit clarification by PERB proceedings on any new titles. Nothing agreed to herein will prevent adjustments to the unit to be made upon mutual agreement of the District and the Union.

ARTICLE 3: DISTRICT RIGHTS

- A. Except to the extent limited by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, the District has all the rights, powers, functions, and authority established by law, as well as the right to require Employees to observe written rules and regulations not inconsistent with this Agreement.
- B. The adoption, modification or repeal of any written rule, regulation or policy of the Board that is not governed by the terms of this Agreement shall remain subject to negotiation to the extent the rule, regulation, or policy relates to wages, hours or other terms and conditions of employment as defined by Government Code Section 3543.2. If the Board contemplates any such change, the parties agree to reopen negotiations for the limited purpose of attempting to reach an agreement regarding the proposed adoption, modification, or repeal.
- C. The Board of Trustees may legally delegate or assign any Board rights or responsibilities to management or other official persons, divisions, departments and committees, as it shall determine appropriate.

ARTICLE 4: AFT RIGHTS

- A. A reasonable number of AFT representatives shall have the right of access to areas in which employees work so long as the representatives do not interfere with the work performance of any employee.
- B. A bulletin board in the mailroom may be used exclusively by AFT. AFT may use one-half of the bulletin boards described below.
 - 1. Reprographics Center or alternative location
 - 2. Bulletin Board in the Part-Time Faculty Offices.
 - 3. All items to be posted shall bear the date of posting and the designation of AFT and shall be removed by AFT within a reasonable amount of time.
- C. One mailbox shall be designated for the exclusive use of AFT.
- D. Communications placed in institutional mailboxes shall bear the designation of AFT.
- E. AFT will pay for its own supplies.
- F. The District will provide one four-drawer filing cabinet (with lock) in the Part-time Faculty Office. District will provide a phone line with voice-mail box for AFT. The AFT shall be permitted free office space on the Main Campus.
- G. AFT shall be permitted the use of facilities and equipment subject to the regulations governing other users as specified in the District policy on use of facilities.
- H. Information
 - 1. The District agrees to provide to the AFT, upon written request, documents reasonably related to negotiations which are public record.
 - 2. Prior to each meeting of the Board of Trustees, the AFT will be provided with a copy of the agenda and non-confidential back-up material for the current meeting and a copy of the minutes of the previous meeting. Confidential and internal communications will be excluded.
 - 3. The District will provide to the AFT, upon written request, a copy of the tentative budget, adopted budget, and other public financial information.
 - 4. The District will provide to the AFT, upon written request, information relevant and necessary to representation.
 - 5. When materials are requested that are not readily available in the form requested, AFT shall pay for the staff time and supplies necessary to produce materials; providing such material is subject to the time limitations of staff and work priorities. An estimate of cost, when applicable, shall be provided to AFT.
- I. Unit members shall be granted leave, upon request and without loss of compensation, for purposes of enabling the part-time faculty member to serve as an elected representative of AFT 6262, the California Federation of Teachers, or the American Federation of Teachers. AFT will provide or reimburse costs of substitute(s) for its representatives on such leave.
- J. For the life of the contract, the District will provide \$12,000 per year to AFT for current part-time faculty members for meeting and negotiating, processing grievances and AFT business. AFT will provide the names and hours to be compensated to Payroll. Such Unit Members shall be compensated at the appropriate hourly rate on the Part-Time Faculty Schedule. Such compensation shall be considered as payment for professional ancillary activity and as such, in accordance with Education Code Section 87482.5(c), shall not be used for purposes of calculating eligibility for contract or regular status under the sixty-seven percent law.

- K. By the end of the first week of each semester the District shall provide the AFT with the most current information outlined above for those Unit members that were not employed by the District in the previous semester. By the fourth Monday of each semester or as soon as possible thereafter, the District shall furnish the Union once each semester, without charge, a list (in electronic form) of Unit Members then currently employed. This list shall contain the names, assignments, home addresses and e-mail addresses of currently employed Unit Members. In addition, home telephone numbers shall be provided for all Unit members except for those Unit Members who have indicated on the District form that their home phone numbers not be disclosed.
- L. Designated representatives of the District and AFT shall meet on mutually agreed-upon dates, place(s) and time(s) for the purpose of reviewing the administration of the Contract of Agreement in force and attempting to resolve any problems that may arise. Both parties may submit an agenda for discussion.
- M. Upon the request by the AFT President, AFT shall have the right to appoint a representative(s) to District budget, calendar, academic staffing, and college policy council committees which deal with issues affecting AFT Unit Members. Committees made up exclusively of School Board members and the Superintendent-President are exempt from this provision.
- N. A copy of this contract shall be provided, without cost to each member of AFT unit.
- O. The District shall provide the AFT with a current Faculty Handbook.

ARTICLE 5: ORGANIZATIONAL SECURITY

- A. AFT shall provide the District with a list certified by an authorized AFT representative identifying all dues paying members from whose salary or wages the dues deduction is to be made and notify the District within 10 days of any change to the certified list.
- B. The District shall deduct dues from the wages of all AFT dues-paying unit members identified on the most recent certified list of dues paying unit members received from AFT. The District shall, without charge, transmit to AFT the sums deducted under this Article.
- C. AFT shall completely indemnify and hold the District and its officers, employees and agents harmless from any and all claims, proceedings, demands or suits, liability, or other action taken or not taken by or on behalf of the District arising from provisions contained in this Article, and to reimburse the District for its cost in defending against such claims, proceedings or liability, except AFT shall have no requirement to indemnify or hold the District harmless if the subject of the claim was solely the responsibility of the District.
- D. AFT may specify a change in the amount of the dues to be collected. Any change to the amount of dues to be collected must be submitted to the District in writing by an authorized AFT officer.
- A. Upon receipt of written notice from AFT, the District will implement the provisions of SB1960 (Chapter 893, Statutes of 2000) regarding membership dues and fair share service fees ("service fees") as provided in this Article.
 - 1. Except as expressly exempted herein, all bargaining unit employees who do not maintain membership in AFT are required as a condition of continued employment to pay service fees to AFT.
 - 2. AFT has the exclusive right to have employee organization membership dues and service fees deducted by the District from the wages or salary of employees in the bargaining unit in accordance with the provisions of this Article.
 - 3. Upon request for implementation of the provisions of SB1960 by AFT, the District will implement automatic payroll deductions for all current bargaining unit employees in accordance with the District's procedures and AFT's dues and service fees schedule. The District will implement automatic payroll deductions for new bargaining unit employees upon employment and after notification from AFT to the employee as to the appropriate deductions.
 - 4. AFT may specify a change in the amount of the dues or service fees provided an authorized AFT officer submits a written notice to the District for such adjustment.
 - 5. The District shall, without charge, transmit to AFT the sums deducted under this Article, except that the District shall transmit to a designated charitable organization sums deducted in lieu of service fees in the case of an employee's bona fide religious objection.
- B. An employee who has a bona fide religious objection, as defined by Government Code section 3546.3 to the payment of service fees in support of an "employee organization," as defined in Government Code section 3540.1(d), shall not be required to join, maintain membership in, or pay dues or service fees required as a condition of employment. However, such employee shall be required, in lieu of service fees required by this Article, to pay sums equal to such service fees to a designated nonreligious, nonlabor, charitable fund exempt from taxation under section 501(c)(3) of Title 26 of the United States Internal Revenue Code:

COC FoundationUnited Way Santa Clarita Homeless Shelter

- C. Any employee claiming this religious exemption shall, as a condition of continued employment, furnish to AFT and to the District a written statement of objection along with verifiable evidence of membership in a religious body whose traditional tenets of teachingsset forth objections to joining or financially supporting employee organizations.
- D. AFT shall establish internal complaint procedures for resolving issues such as the appropriateness of service fees. It shall be the sole responsibility of AFT to resolve such complaints, and it is the expressed intent of the parties that any such dispute or claim shall be specifically excluded from the grievance procedure as provided in this Agreement.
- E. AFT agrees to indemnify and financially hold harmless the District, its Governing Board, officers and administrators against claims, demands, costs, lawsuits, including attorney fees incurred in defending said persons or District, or any other form of liability or expense, including but not limited to, all court or administrative costs, that may arise out of or by reason of action taken by the District for the purpose of complying with this Article, except AFT shall have no requirement to indemnify or hold the District harmless if the subject of the claim was solely the responsibility of the District.

ARTICLE 6: ASSIGNMENT AND SCHEDULING

- 6.1 <u>Purpose</u>: The purpose of this Article is to create stable pools of highly experienced part-timefaculty members through assignment methods that are objective and consistent under Education Code. The provisions in this article become effective for scheduling of the spring2019 semesterFall 2023.
- When there is need for additional faculty service beyond that provided by regular, contract, and/or temporary District full-time faculty, the District will make assignments in accordance with this Article for part-time faculty members, including some applicable sections for non- credit part-time faculty (see article 21 for more details). The minimum qualifications, as defined by the California Community College Chancellor's Office and the district, must be met before any assignment can be granted. Unit members who have been or are currently being investigated for a legitimate violation of the District's written policies and procedures, that has been reviewed by Human Resources, may not receive an assignment.

6.3 Definitions

- 6.3.1 <u>Assignment</u>: Any course, lab, activity, or non-classroom assignment that generates load. If a lecture and lab are taught in tandem as one section, the department chair may determine whether to assign the section as one assignment or as separate assignments.
- 6.3.2 <u>Date of Hire (DoH)</u>: The DoH is the date an individual is hired by the District as a part-time faculty member in the academic discipline(instructional or non-instructional) for which an assignment is offered. If an instructor works in multiple disciplines, the DoH in each discipline willbe assigned respective to the particular discipline.
- 6.3.3 Date of Certification (DoC): The DoC is the date the part-time faculty member earns their online certification as established by the District.
- AFT unit members. The DoH for AFT unit members already in this category as of July 2018 the ratification of this contract will begrandfathered into the pool structure in 6.4.2. based on their will be their original COCFA hire date., as their date of hire (DoH). The DoH for COCFA unit members who retire after July 2018 will be the date they are rehired as a part-time faculty member.
- 6.3.4 <u>Current part-time faculty members</u>: Members with assignments within the past twelve (12) consecutive semesters or sessions. three (3) academic years beginning with Fall semester. If a unit member is no longer interested in receiving assignments in their discipline, the unit member must inform thedepartment that they no longer wish to receive assignments.
- 6.3.5 Session: Winter and Summer only.
- 6.3.6 Semester: Fall and Spring only.
- 6.4 <u>Assignment for part-time faculty:</u> The district retains the right to make assignments for allpart-time faculty members who meet the requirements for each applicable pool in order ofranking according to section 6.4.2.
 - A. <u>Instruction will email AFT unit members a link to the list of available</u> sections or other work assignments for the pool in which they are an active

- member, using the **canyons.edu** domain to the current part-time faculty members, by the deadlines specified in 6.7-
- B. Part-time faculty members may request ranked assignments that corresponds to a classprefix as listed in the college catalogue, or indicate a preferred day and time range of availability for an assignment, by using the online system provided by the District, by replying to the email sent by the department chair within eight (8) calendar days of the date the email was sent.
- C. Part-time faculty members will receive course sections or other work assignments afterregular and contract faculty assignments have been made. In the event a regular or contract faculty member's regular assignment is cancelled or reduced, the regular or contract faculty member may be assigned to a course section or work assignment previously assigned to a part-time faculty member, no later than fourteen (14) calendardays after the start of instruction.
- D. At the discretion of the district, overload assignments shall be given to regular and contract faculty before course sections or other work assignments are made available topart-time faculty members.
- E. Classes or hours for non-instructional assignments assigned to part-time members will not be reassigned to full-time instructors as overload assignments after the first day of class. assigned to part time members will not be reassigned to full-time instructors asoverload assignments after the first day of class.
- F. If an assignment <u>or hours for a non-instructional assignment</u> previously given to a part-time faculty member was cancelled prior tothe start of the term, and the district later adds one or more sections <u>or hours</u> in the unit member's discipline, the unit member shall be offered a replacement assignment <u>or hours</u> conditional to the criteria specified in section 6.2 before additional staffing assignments are made to other part-time faculty members. If the instructor declines the assignment <u>or hours</u>, the unstaffed assignment will be made in accordance with sections 6.4.2. and 6.4.2. J.
- G. Whenever possible, the names of part-time faculty should be listed in the schedule of classes rather than just described as "staff."

6.4.1. Adjunct Faculty Assignments (Credit and Noncredit):

District assignments for Fall and Spring semesters will be adjusted in accordance withthe following:

- A. District assignments will start with the highest ranking based on the criteria outlinedin section 6.4.2.
- B. When there is an increase in the number of class sections or noninstructional hours within a discipline, priority will be given first to qualified regular or contract faculty, followed by part-time faculty members with the highest ranking.
- C. The District reserves the right to reschedule an assignment to a different day, time or location. If the assigned part-time faculty member declines the rescheduled assignment, the District is not obligated to offer another assignment. When an assignment is rescheduled, and the assigned part-time faculty declines the rescheduled assignment, the District will provide first right of refusal to the part-time faculty member with the highest ranking, unless the rescheduled assignment is requested by a qualified regular or

- contract faculty member.
- D. Part-time faculty should be paid for the first week of an assignment or hours for a non-instructional assignment when class or shift is cancelled less than two weeks before the beginning of a semester (fall and spring only). If a class meets more than once per week, part-time faculty should be paid for all classes that were scheduled for that week (see CA Ed. Code Sec. 87482.8). The appropriate instructional dean will make a good faith effort to notify the unit member of the entitled compensation. The unit member must submit a timesheet to the appropriate dean within two weeks of the time worked. If a class or hours for a non-instructional assignment is cancelled after the initial meeting, the employee will be paid for the time worked. Compensation will be given based on the information provided in a timesheet as turned in by the part-time faculty member, which has been reviewed and approved by the instructional dean. No part-time faculty member will be assigned a class or hours that has already been given to another part-time faculty member, except under extraordinary circumstances (i.e. inability to teach).
- E. The District reserves the right to initially leave some sections unstaffed due touncertainty, as specified in section 6.6.
- F. If the District assigns adjunct faculty to the previously unstaffed sections, or hours for a non-instructional assignment, it must do so according to pool rankings as specified in section 6.4.2. If sections or hours are added late and/or after the teaching assignments have been made, assignment offers must adhere to the same pool rankings, except in situation outlined in 6.4.F.

6.4.2. Order of Assignment

- A. The priority to receive assignments <u>in any given discipline (instructional</u> and <u>non-instructional)</u> will be based on pool rankings <u>within three (3) pools</u>, beginning in Pool1, from the highest to the lowest rank.
- B. Pool rankings will be based on DoH or DoC. If two unit members have the same hireor certification date, preference will be determined by the number of courses taught.
- B. Ranking within each pool will be based on DoH. If two unit members have the same DoH, preference will be determined by the total number of semesters and sessions taught, or sessions worked for non-instructional staff. If a tie remains, the assignment will be made by lottery.
- C. Assignments will be given first to part-time unit members in Pool 1, then to part-time unit members in Pool 2, and lastly to part-time unit members in Pool 3.
- D. Eligibility to be offered courses or hours in multiple modalities (on-ground, online, an OnlineLIVE) is dependent on meeting the minimum qualifications to teach the course, having the required certification, and not having received an average evaluation score below 3.0 in an evaluation for the modality being assigned. In order to teach Online and Hybrid courses the instructor must be online certified. In order to teach Hyflex and OnlineLive courses the instructor must be OnlineLive certified.

E. Structure of Pools

1. Pool 1: These part-time faculty members must have taught or been given non-

- classroom assignments for at least eight (8) regular semesters or sessions (not required to be consecutive)
 - Received an average of 3.0 or better in a recent evaluation in at least one (1) modality.
- 2. Pool 2: These part-time faculty members must have taught or been given a nonclassroom assignment for at least one (1) session
 - Received an average of 3.0 or better in a recent evaluation in at least one (1) modality.
- 3. Pool 3: These part-time faculty members meet at least one (1) criteria below:
 - Newly hired
 - Received less than an average of 3.0 in the most recent evaluation in one or more modalities.
 - Returning part-time faculty members after a voluntary break in service of more than six (6) consecutive semesters
- D. Pool 1: These part-time faculty members must meet ALL three (3) criteria below:
 - 1. Have taught or been given non-classroom assignments for a combination of atleast twenty (20) regular semesters or sessions
 - 2. Received an average of 3.5 or better in the most recent evaluation
 - 3. Do not have any score of 1.0 or 2.0 in any sections A through G of the academicevaluation form
- E. Pool 2: These part-time faculty members must meet ALL three (3) criteria below:
 - 1. Have taught or been given a non-classroom assignment for at least one (1)regular semester or session
 - 2. Received an average of 3.5 or better in the most recent evaluation
 - 3. Do not have any score of 1.0 in any sections A through G of the academic evaluation form
- F. Pool 3: These part-time faculty members meet at least one criteria below:
 - 1. Newly hired
 - 2. Received less than an average of 3.5 in the most recent evaluation
 - 3. Received an evaluation score of 1.0 or 2.0 in any section A through G of theacademic evaluation form
 - 4. Returning part-time faculty members after a voluntary break in service of morethan six (6) consecutive semesters
- G.F. Retired COC members full time faculty who return to teach parttime and have an average evaluation score of 3.5 or better on their last
 evaluation as a full-time faculty members will be placed in Pool 1. The
 DoH for a retired COCFA unit member, who retires after the ratification of
 this contract, July 2018 will be assigned per Section 6.3.2. For retired
 COCFA unit members who retired prior to the ratification of this contract
 July 2018, seesection 6.3.4.
- H.G. Management and Classified employees concurrently teaching part-time will be assigned a DoH per Section 6.3.2. and will be placed in the appropriate pool corresponding to their most recent evaluation, unless they are not paid for teachingthe course.
- I. In the case of a tie in DoH, the assignment will be given to the instructor who hastaught the most number of courses at College of the Canyons. If a tie remains, theassignment will be made by lottery.
- <u>H.H.</u> If less than three (3) sections of a course are offered per semester, or

courses are delivered to incarcerated students, are part of a non-credit course continuation, or are part of dual enrollment (classes taught exclusively to high school students on a high school campus) or are part of an ISA (i.e. public safety agency), a Department Chair may assign the course independent of the part-time faculty member's pool ranking (based on the specialization, expertise, or current appropriate training or certification in the discipline as evidenced by education, work history, or certification required to teach the course as per the course outline of record), The Department Chair will indicate on the online posted schedule why a person of lesser rank was assigned to a course (i.e. work history, education, orcertification) or other teaching requirement as documented in the course outline of record).

- I. In order to receive an online, hybrid, OnlineLIVE or HyFlex course assignment, the instructor must be certified per district policy. Eligibility to be assigned any course requiring separate certification will be noted on the ranked lists within each Pool.
- K. In order to receive an online or hybrid course assignment, the instructor must be online certified per district policy. If less than three (3) sections of a course are offered per semester, a Department Chair may assign the course independent of the part-time faculty member's pool ranking (based on the specialization, expertise, or current appropriate training or certification in the discipline as evidenced by education, work history, or certification required to teach the course), The Department Chair will indicate on the online posted schedule why a person of lesserrank was assigned to a course (i.e. work history, education, or certification). Online courses will be assigned according to the online pool system (6.4.2.M).
- L.J. For co-listed (e.g., KPEA 150A, KPEA 150B, KPEA 150C) and cross-listed (e.g., ARCHT 110 and ID 110) classes, where multiple sections exist at the same time and place with the same instructor, this will constitute one section.
- M. For online and hybrid courses, pool membership will be based on the most recent online or hybrid course evaluation score and the number of semesters during whichan instructor taught an online or hybrid course. Pool ranking for online and hybrid courses will be determined by the date the instructor was certified to teach online courses.
- N.K. The ranked list of all adjuncts in all disciplines, using pools, will be made available by Human Resources to the President of AFT and the Office of Academic Affairs Instruction by the 1st Mondayin April Monday in August, once per year. All semesters and sessions through the first Monday in April August will be included in the ranked list. List received in August will be utilized by departments for assignment in the following Spring and Fall semesters.
- 6.4.3 <u>Assignments for all Pools</u>: Part-time faculty members may not exceed a 67% load, unless requested to do so by the District. Part-time faculty members will <u>be given preference in receive</u>-their choice of assignment(s) in accordance with

- <u>6.4.2.A.</u> based on their pool membership and ranking, starting with the highest-ranking first.
- 6.4.3.1 Part-time faculty members in Pool 1 will be offered between a 60-67% load, subjectto availability of sections. Per Education Code 87482, the District may employ adjunct nursing faculty beyond 67% for up to four (4) semesters within any period of three (3) consecutive academic years.
- 6.4.3.2 Part-time faculty members in Pool 2 will be offered one (1) course or hours (i.e.20-25% load), subject to availability of sections. Unit members who received 2 course sections during, eitherFall 2017 or Spring 2018, will be grandfathered and continue to be offered two sections during the term of this contract.
- 6.4.3.3 Part-time faculty members in Pool 3 will be offered one (1) course or hours (i.e. 20-25% load), subject toavailability of sections.
- 6.4.3.4 If there are sections still available after all Pool 3 adjuncts have received one (1)section, the department chair will return to the top of Pool 2 and then Pool 3 and continue assigning sections until none remain.
- 6.4.3.46.4.3.5 If there are sections still available after the second round of assignment to Pool 2, the department chair will return to the top of Pool 3 and continue assigning sections until none remain.
- 6.4.3.56.4.3.6 Winter and Summer Sessions The ranked lists of Pool 1, Pool 2, and Pool 3 will not beused when staffing during the Winter intersession or Summer sessions, and assignments will be made according to 6.2. The District will direct department chairs to send the list of available class sections or non-instructional hours for Winter and summer to all available adjuncts at the same time.

6.4.4. Failure to provide an evaluation

A failure of the District to fulfill the evaluation frequency requirement set forth inArticle 8 is considered grievable.

- 6.5 <u>Assignments and Offer Lists</u>: Each semester or session, assignment lists will be electronically generated by the chair and/or deanthe District and a link to the lists will be emailed to unit members. Department chairs will send an email with all available sections to all current part-time faculty members and posted on a secure online site in accordance with section 6.6. Once the assignments have been made, the list containing all the offered sections/hours shall include the information below, which will be posted on a secure online site:
 - 6.5.1 Name of part-time faculty member
 - 6.5.2 Part-time faculty member ranking (i.e. pool number and pool ranking)
 - 6.5.3 Scheduled assignment(s)
 - 6.5.4 Where applicable, exceptions to pool rankings as per section 6.4.2.JH. It is the responsibility of the part-time faculty member to confirm their assignment(s) and to notify the department chair and the dean of any inaccuracies regarding ranking or any other information within seven (7) calendardays of receiving the assignment list.

6.6 Adjunct Librarians

6.6.1 Librarian assignments, whether recurring (defined as more than 1 time per semester, such as a Monday 8 am to 10 am shift) or expected one-time (defined as known by a full-time faculty member as well as solicited by and communicated to the Head Librarian and Instructional Dean prior to issuing the List of Available

- Sections to all current part-time faculty members) library shifts, will be offered at the same time to all adjunct librarians and scheduled based on priority order, per Article 6.4.2, when scheduling for the fall and spring semesters.
- 6.6.2 If full-time faculty reclaim an expected one-time library shift previously assigned to an adjunct librarian, it will not be subject to grievance, nor would the District be obligated to pay the adjunct librarian for the unworked shift, provided notice is given at least three (3) business days or 72 business hours prior to the shift, via a time-stamped email notification using the adjunct's canyons edu email.
- 6.6.3 Unexpected one-time library shifts that become available within less than three (3) business days or 72 business hours before the shift occurs, will be offered to full-time faculty first, and if they do not take them, then they will be offered to all adjunct librarians at the same time, via email through the adjunct's canyons.edu email, and assigned on a first-come, first-served basis. If notice is given more than three (3) business days or 72 business hours in advance, then the shift will be assigned by priority order as per Section 6.4.1.F.
- 6.6 <u>Timeline:</u> The District will staff sections according to the timeline below. The District will notify AFT of reasons for exceptions to the timeline below. Exceptions to the timeline belowmay include the following:
 - Uncertainty in funding that results in a reduction or expansion of department courseofferings;
 - Change in course availability due to the change in the number of department full-timefaculty or full-time faculty reassigned/release time;
 - Change in course offerings due to a change in curriculum, reorganization, or administrative priorities concerning enrollment;
 - Change in off-campus site priorities (e.g. Nursing clinical sites) external to the college; and
 - Technical difficulties with software or data systems.

We hereby confirm that we have negotiated, in good-faith, the following agreement as related to Spring 2023 adjunct faculty staffing and subsequent Fall/Spring semesters, based on the current accelerated student registration timeline that has been in place throughout the current academic year.

- a. Existing language in the current AFT contract (July 1, 2017 June 30, 2020) regarding providing updated DOH and DOC lists by HR to the President of AFT and the Office of Instruction by the 1st Monday in April, once per year, will be modified for Spring 2023 adjunct faculty staffing and beyond.
- b. The District and AFT agree that the ranked list of all adjuncts in all disciplines, using pools, will be made available by Human Resources to the President of AFT and the Office of Instruction by the 1st Monday in August 2022, once per year, and will be used beginning with the Spring 2023 adjunct faculty staffing.
- c. The District will staff sections, beginning with the Spring 2023 schedule, according to the timeline below:

	Department Chairs to send List of Available Sections to all current part- time faculty members	Department Chairs to send Offers of Assigned Sections to all current part- time faculty members during the
Summer	No earlier than the Spring Semester Flex Week and no later than the first Monday in March.week of the Spring Semester.	Last Week in March Third Week in February
Fall	No earlier than the Spring Semester Flex Week and no later than the second Monday in April.third week in February.	Second Week in MayThird Week in March
Winter/Spring	No earlier than the Fall Semester Flex Week and no later than the first Monday in October. week of the Fall Semester.	First Week in November First Week in September.
Spring	No earlier than the Fall Semester Flex Week and no later than the last week in August.	Third Week in September.

ARTICLE 7: PERSONNEL FILES

- A. A single personnel file, secured in a lockable cabinet in the Human Resources Office, will exist for each Unit Member. These files shall not include the records relating to grievances or arbitrations.
- B. Derogatory materials will not be filed in the Unit Member's personnel file until the employee has been given notice of the filing and has had at least ten working days to submit a response to be attached to the material. Derogatory anonymous materials will not be added to the file.
- C. At the request of the employee, derogatory material may be removed after two years with mutual agreement between the Unit Member and the Superintendent/President.
- D. Authorization to inspect the Unit Member's personnel file is granted to the employee (by appointment) and the Superintendent/President or his/her designee. The Unit Member's designee may inspect the file with non-continuing written permission from the employee.
- E. The District shall keep a log indicating the persons (other than persons whose duty it is to maintain the files) who have examined the personnel file. The log shall be maintained in the Unit Member's personnel file and shall include the person who examined the file, as well as the date such examinations were made.
- F. Information from the personnel file shall not be released without Unit Member consent unless compelled by law, judicial order or subpoena, or legitimate need to know.
- G. The original of all performance evaluations will be placed in the Unit Member's personnel file.
- H. Unit Members will have the right, by appointment, to inspect and request and receive copies of materials in their personnel file during normal business hours, but not during the time the employee is actually required to render services to the District. Pre-employment materials will be removed from the file prior to the inspection appointment in accordance with Education Code. The employee will be charged with the cost of copying materials.

ARTICLE 8: EVALUATIONS

A. To assure the highest quality educational programs and services, Unit Members shall be observed and evaluated. The evaluator should arrive on time and be professional as well as respectful to the adjunct faculty member and students in the class.

B. Definitions

- 1. An "evaluatee" is the person being evaluated.
- 2. At the discretion of the department chair, the primary "evaluator" is a full-time faculty member, part-time faculty member, or department chair in the department or division of the evaluatee. At the discretion of the department chair, an appropriate educational administrator may be assigned to the evaluation.
 - a. If the class to be visited is an online class, the evaluator will have online teaching experience. If the department chair is not able to assign an evaluator as described in B.2 who has online teaching experience, the evaluator will either be a full-time faculty member in a related discipline who has online teaching experience, or coevaluators (one assigned per B.2 and the other a faculty member or educational administrator who has taught the course in online pedagogy required for online certification at College of the Canyons), assigned by the Dean of Distance Learning.
 - b. If co-evaluators are assigned for an evaluation of an online class, the evaluator assigned per B.2 will complete only that part of the evaluation pertaining to knowledge of the course content; the faculty member who has taught the course in online pedagogy required to become qualified to teach online at College of the Canyons will complete the part of the evaluation pertaining to course design, presentation, and execution.
 - c. If a hybrid class is 50% or more online, the class visitation will be online using the online form (Appendix B Online). If a hybrid class is less than 50% online, the class visitation will be in the classroom using the classroom form (Appendix B Classroom). The class visitation for OnlineLIVE classes will be made using Appendix B OnlineLIVE.
- 3. An "observation" is the observation of the Unit Member, in the performance of his or her duties, by the evaluator.
- 4. The "instrument" is the agreed upon Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix B Classroom or Appendix B Online or Appendix B OnlineLIVE) for teaching faculty. Non-teaching part-time facultywill be evaluated using the Non-Instructional Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix E).

C. Scheduling and Frequency

- 1. Unit members shall be evaluated during the first semester of employment and **once** every four semesters of employment. Unit members shall also be evaluated during their first semester of teaching in any new learning modality and **once** during the next four semesters of teaching in that modality. Unit members who primarily work winter or summer sessions only will be evaluated during the applicable session. Thereafter, unit members will be evaluated **once** every four semesters of teaching per modality. The evaluator must be certified and/or regularly teach in the modality for which they are performing the evaluation.
- 1. Part-time instructors shall be evaluated during the first semester of employment and at least one additional time during the next four semesters of employment. Part time faculty who primarily work winter or summer sessions only will be evaluated during the applicable session. Thereafter, part time instructors will be evaluated at least one time during every four semesters of employment.

- 2. In the absence of complaints investigated by the dean and/or Human Resources or significant failure to follow district policies and procedures, and in the presence of good student evaluations, part-time instructorsunit members who have taught for at least sixteen (16) semesters shall be evaluated once every six semesters of employment.
- 3. At the option of the Department Chair, a Unit Member may be evaluated when he or she is assigned to teach a new course within the discipline or other discipline the Unit Member has not previously taught at the District.
- D. The complete evaluation documents shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:
 - 1. Student Evaluation: An electronic student survey, jointly agreed to by the parties, shall be administered to all students of the faculty member to be evaluated. Student evaluations will be used to improve instruction, not as a sole determinant of employee status. Studentevaluations for all modalities online classes will be administered consistent with the process used for full-time faculty.
 - a. Student evaluations will be administered electronically with the exception of incarcerated students, which will be conducted using paper during a single class session.
 - b. Student evaluations will be administered at approximately the 50% of the semester mark.
 - c. For classes 8-weeks in duration or longer, the surveys will run for 10 calendar days.
 - d. For classes less than 8-weeks in duration, the surveys will run for 5 calendar days.
 - a.e. The evaluatee and evaluator will receive the results of the student evaluations electronically within one week of the completion of student evaluations.

2. Classroom/Non-Instructional Evaluation Report:

- a. The evaluator shall make at least one classroom or other work place observation, to be no less than fifty minutes in length whenever possible (but may be longer if the class or lab session observed is longer). An evaluation report based on this observation and other appropriate criteria will be completed on the forms jointly agreed to by both parties.
- b. The evaluation report (Appendix B or Appendix E) should be completed by the evaluator and submitted to the part-time faculty member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date. It will then be forwarded to the department chair, and division dean, who will sign off on the report, indicating that they acknowledge the findings. Any evaluation report submitted to the part-time faculty member later than the twenty-eight (28) calendar days is still valid.

3. Online Evaluation Report:

a. If the class to be evaluated takes place 100% online or hybrid class is 50% or more online, the evaluator shall, during a prearranged and mutually agreed on meeting with the evaluatee, access one current online/hybrid course section for review. If a hybrid class is selected, then the online portion of the class shall be subject to evaluation. The meeting class observation can take place in person or virtually, and should be no less than fifty cumulative minutes in length, but may be longer if the complete section cannot be reviewed within fifty cumulative minutes. The evaluation process should, at a minimum, determine that academically relevant student-instructor contact is regularlyinitiated by the instructor and is substantive. Furthermore, the evaluation should, at a minimum, determine that student-instructor and student-student interaction is conducted in alignment with the current Distance Learning Addendum (part of the official course outline of record) for the particular course. An evaluation report based on this observation and other appropriate criteria will be

- completed on the forms jointly agreed to by both parties.
- b. The evaluation report (Appendix B Online) should be completed by the evaluator and submitted to the part-time faculty member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date. It will then be forwarded to the department chair and division dean, who will sign off on the report, indicating that they acknowledge the findings. Any evaluation report submitted to the part-time faculty member later than the twenty-eight (28) calendar days is still valid.
- 4. Self-Reflection: Each part-time instructor will complete a written self-reflection, due to the evaluator at least five (5) calendar days before the Evaluation Conference, to be used to improve instruction and not as a determinant of employee status. The self-reflection shall include, but may not be limited to:
 - a. Objectives for improvement, change or maintenance of methodology based on the results of the student survey, a self-examination of teaching methods, student learning outcomes, assessment data from student learning outcomes or other measures, and whatever other factors that are deemed relevant.
 - b. A review of the objectives for improvement, if any, from the evaluatee's last evaluation.
 - c. A summary of professional growth activities. A listing of reasonable resources that can be provided by the District to help improve instructor teaching.
- 5. The Professionalism Report (Appendix D) is an optional report regarding the evaluatee's professionalism and other faculty responsibilities. The Professionalism Report is in addition to the Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix B Classroom, Appendix B Online, Appendix B Online, Appendix B OnlineLIVE, or Appendix E). This report can be requested by the member, the member's department chair, or the member's division dean during any semester or term, irrespective of the member's comprehensive evaluation. It can be completed by the member's department chair or division dean. If Appendix D is completed during a regular evaluation cycle, the member should be notified via e-mail by the division dean ten (10) days in advance of the final review conference. The Professionalism Report should be submitted to the member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date and will become part of the member's comprehensive evaluation report (when conducted during a regular evaluation cycle). All evaluation documents will be placed in the adjunct instructor's District personnel file.

E. Evaluation Conference:

- 1. An evaluation conference to be held no sooner than seven (7) calendar days after the observation will be scheduled by the evaluator. The conference will deal with, but not be limited to, the items listed above in the evaluation report and Self Reflection.
- 2. If requested by the evaluatee, the division dean may be included in this meeting to discuss the Professionalism Report.
- F. If desired, the evaluatee may submit a written, signed response regarding Appendix B Classroom, Appendix B Online, Appendix B OnlineLIVE, or Appendix E (and optional Appendix D) to the divisiondean within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Evaluation Conference.
- G. The evaluatee may challenge the initially proposed evaluator and request an alternate evaluator be assigned. The replacement evaluator will be assigned by the division dean in consultation with the department chair. This challenge must be received by the division dean with five (5) calendar days of the communication informing the unit member of the initially proposed evaluator, and may only be exercised once per evaluation.
- H. In the event the evaluatee feels the evaluation report and/or overall evaluation score is

inaccurate or non-representational, the evaluatee may request a second evaluation to be conducted by a different evaluator.

- 1. The evaluatee must submit a written request for a second evaluation to the division dean within five (5) workdays of receipt of the completed evaluation form, specifying the perceived problem with the original evaluation and the justification for a second evaluation.
- 2. The evaluatee will receive a written response to the request for a second evaluation within ten (10) workdays of the request.
 - a. If a second evaluation is granted, it may be scheduled during the same semester (or term) or during the following semester.
 - b. If a second evaluation is not granted, the response must include specific reason(s) for denying the request based on substantive, not staffing, criteria. Refusal to grant a second evaluation is grievable by the evaluatee or AFT.
- I. All evaluation documents as described in section D, section F, and section H above should be submitted to Human Resources by the division dean before the end of the respective semester or term that the evaluation occurred.

ARTICLE 9: LEAVES

A. Sick Leave

- 1. Unit Members shall earn one (1) hour of paid sick leave after every eighteen (18) hours worked during the fall and spring semesters. An hour is defined as fifty (50) minutes for accruing and deducting sick leave.
- 2. An instructor will notify the Office of Instruction of illness as soon as possible so that students can be notified appropriately.
- 3. Sick leave may not be used prior to its accumulation.
- 4. At the beginning of each semester, the District shall post for each Unit Member, online, an accounting of the number of paid hours of illness leave he/she has accumulated. Exact sick leave which is available to unit members may be requested from payroll at any time.
- 5. Any unused portion of this paid sick leave will be accumulated indefinitely and will be returned to the employee if he or she returns to service with the District.
- 6. Unit members have the right to transfer accumulated sick leave from other eligible entities (e.g. other California Community Colleges) as required by the Education Code.
- 7. Deductions for any person placed under quarantine will be made on the same basis as if the Unit Member were ill.

B. Catastrophic Leave

- 1. The District shall establish a catastrophic illness or injury pool. Leave hours may be utilized from this pool to provide replacement services for a Unit Member. A committee composed of two (2) representatives from the Office of Human Resources and two (2) representatives selected by AFT shall determine who shall be allowed to use the days from the pool. The committee shall recommend rules and regulations for the administration of the pool.
- 2. Catastrophic illness or injury shall be defined as an illness or injury that is expected to incapacitate the part-time faculty member for an extended period of time, or that incapacitates a member of the employee's family which requires the employee to take time off from work for an extended period of time to care for the family member (defined as spouse, child, parent, domestic partner or other family member living in the household), and taking extended time off creates a financial hardship for the employee because he or she has exhausted all of his/her sick leave and other paid time off. (BP 817).
- 3. To request Catastrophic Leave, the unit member must complete a Catastrophic Leave Request Form, attach medical verification from a licensed medical physician which defines the catastrophic illness or injury (including estimated date of return), and submit all documentation to the Office of Human Resources.
- 4. The unit member is entitled to some or all hours donated at the time of solicitation, based on the recommendation by the committee, provided the donated leave does not exceed the actual time needed during the semester in which the leave commenced
- 5. He or she will use all paid leaves accrued on a monthly basis while in paid leave status as a result of a catastrophic leave.
- 6. Unit Members shall have the right to voluntarily donate sick leave to a catastrophic leave pool for use by another Unit Member.
- 7. Eligible leave credits must be donated in one (1) hour increments.

- 8. The donating unit member shall execute and file with the Office of Human Resources a form authorizing assigning accumulated sick leave to the Catastrophic Leave bank. The donation of eligible leave credits shall be irrevocable.
- 9. Leave donated and not used by the requesting unit member will be banked for future unit members.
- 10. Unit members leaving service with the District may donate accumulated sick time to the Catastrophic Leave Bank.
- 11. The Office of Human Resources will verify the information submitted on the Request for Catastrophic Leave form. Requests will be reviewed by the committee to determine if criteria have been met.

C. Personal Necessity Leave

- 1. Each year, at the discretion of the Unit Member, a Unit Member may use accumulated sick leave for personal necessity, which shall be deducted from the Unit Member's accumulated sick leave.
- 2. Unit Members shall submit notification for personal necessity leave to their immediate supervisor at least two (2) days prior to the beginning of the leave, except when extenuating circumstances make this impossible.
- 3. Under no circumstances shall paid personal necessity leave be used for the purposes of extending a holiday or vacation period, seeking other employment, attending to matters which could be taken care of outside of work hours, participating in recreational activities or participating in concerted actions.
- 4. Traditional examples of personal necessity leaves include the following:
 - a. Accident to person or property of Unit Member, or person or property of a member of the Unit Member's immediate family (as defined in B.2.).
 - b. Health or well-being of the Unit Member's immediate family (as defined in B.2).
 - c. Religious holiday, rites or ceremonies of the Unit Member's faith.
 - d. Court appearance as a litigant or witness under subpoena or official order (for personal business).
 - e. Birth of a child for a Unit Member who is either a parent or grandparent of the child.
 - f. The adoption of a child making it necessary for Unit Member to be absent during regular assigned hours of service.
 - g. Imminent danger to the home of the Unit Member, occasioned by flood, fire, earthquake or similar serious nature which cannot be disregarded by the Unit Member.
 - h. Personal business (not involving employment or professional duties outside this contract from which it is intended or usual that income be derived) which, by its nature, could not be conducted before or after the teaching day.
 - i. Fire or other natural disaster preventing transportation to work.

D. Bereavement Leave

- 1. A Unit Member shall be eligible for a paid leave of absence for the death of any member of the immediate family without loss of pay or deduction from other leave benefits found in the Article. This leave shall not exceed three (3) calendar days to a maximum of five (5) calendar days if travel exceeds 200 miles. Bereavement leave must be taken within the semester of the death or event.
- 2. For the purpose of this section, immediate family shall be defined as: mother, father, stepparent, spouse, child, stepchild, foster child, brother, sister, grandparent, or

grandchild of the Unit Member or spouse, or any person living in the immediate household of the Unit Member. For the purposes of this section "domestic partner" shall be included in the definition of immediate family.

E. Leave for Required Court Appearance

- 1. A Unit Member subpoenaed to appear in court (other than as a litigant) or ordered to respond to an official order from another government agency for reasons not brought through the initiation, connivance or misconduct of the unit member will receive full salary.
- 2. Jury duty leave shall be granted by the District for up to five (5) days of actual jury service without loss in pay. Any additional days can be used as Personal Necessity Leave.
- 3. Unit members shall attempt to reschedule jury service to non-instructional days.

F. Leave for Industrial Accident or Illness

- 1. A Unit Member shall be provided a leave of absence for industrial accident or occupational illness under the following rules and regulations (per Education Code 87787)
 - a. The industrial accident or occupational illness must have arisen out of and in the course of the employment of the Unit Member and must be accepted by the District's Workers' Compensation insurer as a bona fide injury or illness.
 - b. A Unit Member who has sustained a job-related injury or illness shall report the injury or illness to the immediate supervisor on the District accident form no later than the next scheduled workday or as soon as possible thereafter.
 - c. Allowable leave for each industrial accident or illness will be for the number of days of temporary disability but not to exceed sixty (60) days and when the Unit Member would otherwise have been performing work for the District in any one (1) fiscal year for the same accident or illness.
 - d. Allowable leave will not be accumulated from year to year.
 - e. The leave under these rules and regulations will commence on the first day of absence.
 - f. Maximum salary during any one (1) period will not exceed the normal salary rate.
 - g. Industrial accident or illness leave shall be reduced by one day for each day of authorized absence regardless of a temporary disability indemnity award.
 - h. When an industrial accident or illness leave overlaps into the next fiscal year, the Unit Member shall be entitled to only the amount of unused leave due to him/her for the same illness or injury.
 - i. During any paid leave of absence for industrial accident or occupational illness, the District receives temporary disability indemnity checks for the unit member. The District, in turn, shall issue the Unit Member's appropriate salary warrants and shall deduct normal retirement (on his/her full salary) and other authorized contributions.
- 2. Upon termination of the industrial accident or illness leave, the Unit Member shall be entitled to the benefits provided for sick leave (Education Code Sections 87780, 87781, and 87786) and the absence for such purpose will be deemed to have commenced on the date of termination of the industrial accident or illness leave. If the Unit Member continues to receive temporary disability indemnity he/she may elect to draw on accumulated sick leave to provide (with temporary disability indemnity payments) total income not to exceed normal full salary.

G. Military Leave

A Unit Member will be granted unpaid military leave in accordance with the provisions of the Education Code, and of the Military and Veterans Code.

H. Leave to Attend Professional Conferences

- 1. With the prior approval of the Vice President of Instruction, or his/her designee, a Unit Member may be authorized to attend conferences, or special meetings, in the performance of school duties. Such attendance will not constitute absence from teaching service.
- 2. Out-of-state travel to conferences by a Unit Member will be authorized only in exceptional circumstances. Upon return from travel, the Unit Member shall submit a written report to the administrative supervisor within a period of ten (10) working days.

I. Maternity Leave

Maternity leave using accumulated sick leave or without pay shall be granted to any Unit Member who is required to be absent from duties because of pregnancy, miscarriage, childbirth, and recovery there from. The length of the leave of absence, within the semester they are employed, including the date on which the leave shall commence and the date on which the employee shall resume duties, shall be determined by the employee and the employee's physician.

J. General Policy

A Statement of Absence will be signed by any absent Unit Member and returned to the Office of Instruction within twenty-four (24) hours of return to campus. A statement from a licensed medical physician will be required if the absence relates to an illness and extends beyond one (1) week. A current statement from the physician should indicate the date of incapacity, length of absence, and the employee's ability to return to work.

K. Reinstatement After Leave of Absence

At the expiration of the leave of absence of the employee, the employee, unless he or she otherwise agrees, shall be reinstated in the position held by him or her at the time of the granting of the leave of absence (Ed Code Section 87774) when s/he returns from leave during the semester in which the leave was granted. If unable to return during the same semester that the leave was taken, unit members who wish to return to duty in a future semester and who meet the eligibility requirements as outlined in Article 6 should contact the Department Chair. This does not guarantee any employment in subsequent semesters.

ARTICLE 10: TOTAL COMPENSATION

The Santa Clarita Community College District employs a Total Compensation Model with regard to employee salary and benefits.

- A. Unit members shall be paid for teaching assignments on a per course basis using the contact hours associated with the assignment.
- B. Adjunct faculty salaries for teaching credit courses, and enhanced noncredit courses, and providing counseling and librarian services are implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule and all the terms included on the schedule. (Appendix A, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section A).
 - 1. For 2017-2018 adjustments to the Adjunct Salary Schedule will be 3.48% effective July 1, 2017.
 - 2. All adjunct instructors are initially placed on Range 1/Step 1 of the Adjunct Salary Schedule. Advancement to Step 2 of the Adjunct Salary Schedule requires that a unit member complete 4 semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions). Advancement to Step 3 of the schedule requires that a unit member complete 6 semesters of service at Step 2. The increase from Step 2 to Step 3 is approximately 3%. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment. Advancement will apply to the next fall or spring semester of employment. Service credit on the credit adjunct scale does not affect placement on the non-credit, non-enhanced salary schedule. Service credit is earned independently on each salary schedule.
 - 3. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate degree (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution, will be placed on Range 3 of the Academic Adjunct Salary Schedule. Associate Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate degree (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 4 of the Academic Adjunct Salary Schedule. Unit members must provide official transcripts to Human Resources for this benefit to apply. Once verified, the benefit will apply to the next fall or spring semester of employment.
- C. A noncredit adjunct faculty rate of pay for teaching non-enhanced, non-credit courses is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (*Appendix A, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section B*). For 2017-2018 the rate per hour will be increased by 3.48% effective July 1, 2017. The hourly rate of pay applies to noncredit faculty as defined in Article 21: Noncredit Faculty.
- D. Newly hired faculty teaching non-enhanced, non-credit courses will be placed on range one, step one per hour regardless of prior service with any other college. Noncredit faculty with four semesters of service will move to Step 2. Service credit is earned independently on each salary schedule.

- E. A noncredit TLC (The Learning Center) adjunct faculty rate of pay is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (*Appendix A Adjunct Salary Schedule Section C*). For 2017-2018 the rate per hour will be increased by 3.48% effective July 1, 2017. Newly hired noncredit faculty will be placed on range one, step one per hour regardless of prior service with any other college. Noncredit faculty with four semesters of service will move to Step 2.
- F. A non-instructional rate of pay is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (*Appendix A, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section D and Section E*). A non-instructional rate of pay of 65% of a unit member's current rate of pay shall apply towards pre-approved (District requested and administrator approved) non-instructional activities effective February 1, 2014. Approved non-instructional activities include but are not limited to: curriculum development, required attendance at conferences/workshops/training sessions as a participant or presenter, proctoring and grading assessments beyond what is required for assigned classes, and requested service on specific committees.
- G. Scheduled office hours will be compensated at \$40 per scheduled office hour. Payment of scheduled office hours for full semester-length fall and spring classes will be made in 5 equal payments during the fall and spring semesters after the Dean has verified that office hours have been performed and posted appropriately. Office hours associated with compressed courses will be paid during their normally scheduled pay periods. Unit members will not be compensated for unscheduled office hours. However, if the District receives State reimbursement for office hours in excess of the amount paid for scheduled office hours, the District will distribute the surplus to compensate unit members for unscheduled office hours.
- H. The District will make payments for Supplementary Services for Adjunct STRS members upon both Board approval and completion of the services. Adjunct PERS members must submit Supplementary Services forms to Payroll Services monthly, even if the assignment is not yet completed.
- I. It is the responsibility of the Unit Members to notify the Office of Human Resources as soon as they discover any error in placement on the salary schedule. Errors discovered either by the Unit Member or by the District will, in every case, be recovered to the extent allowed by law either by the District or by the Unit Member.

J. Health Benefits

AFT and the District will continue to work together to find a health benefit plan that would provide part-time faculty access at no cost to the District. If and when a plan is in place, the District will reimburse adjunct faculty members for that percentage that the District is actually reimbursed by the State of California.

K. The District and AFT agree that parity is important to maintain high quality instructors, thus ensuring student success. The District agrees that when it receives State funds designated for the achievement of parity, the District will contact AFT within 7 calendar days and will work with AFT to ensure that the funds are equitably distributed to the adjunct instructors.

L.	Human Resources will add hyperlink to Human Resources website where unit members of find information about loan forgiveness programs.		

ARTICLE 11: WORKING CONDITIONS

A. Safe Working Conditions

- 1. The District shall provide as safe as reasonably possible working conditions for unit members.
- 2. All district activities shall be conducted in accordance with applicable OSHA regulations. Unit members are encouraged to submit written recommendations using the established on-line process regarding the maintenance of safe working conditions, facilities and equipment, and repairs and modifications to insure compliance with appropriate safety standards.
- 3. Unit members shall observe posted safety rules.
- 4. The district has a Safety Committee. AFT shall have the right to appoint one (1) Unit Member to the Safety Committee. Attendance at the committee meeting(s) will be considered allowable FLEX time, however, attendance hours will not be deducted from the total available per Article 19. The committee shall conduct surveys, accept petitions or complaints, and make recommendations to the Superintendent/President. Such recommendations shall be considered for implementation as soon as possible.
- 5. TB Testing will be required of all Unit Members every four (4) years.
- 6. The District will offer Shelter-in-Place training for all Unit Members. Compensation will be in the form of FLEX hours, per this agreement.
- 7. The District will offer sexual harassment and avoidance training for all Unit Members. Compensation will be via FLEX hours as outlined in this agreement.
- 8. The District will offer training related to Sexual Assault response for all unit members. Compensation will be via FLEX hours as outlined in this agreement, however if such training is mandatory, there will be no deduction from the FLEX hour allotment.

B. Participation in Governance

- 1. Unit Members may attend and be heard at department meetings. At the option of the permanent department members, unit members may have the right to vote on specific department issues.
- 2. Unit Members may have the opportunity to serve on department committees at the request of the Department chair. If paid at the non-instructional rate, such payment must be approved in advance by the Chief Instructional Officer or designee.
- 3. Unit Members may request to serve on relevant campus committees.
- 4. Unit Members shall continue to have the opportunity for faculty service outside of the classroom, including but not limited to course development and grant-writing.
- 5. The district will pay one Unit Member each, at the non-instructional rate per the applicable adjunct salary schedule (Appendix A), for service on the committees specified in Appendix G. Prior approval must be provided by the CIO, and hours worked will be submitted by the unit member via timesheet. Such pay shall be considered pay for ancillary activities and shall not count towards the cap, as provided by State law.
- 6. Part-time faculty members are welcome to serve on all standing District-wide committees and ad hoc committees as appropriate.
- 7. If, at the end of the Academic Senate department chair selection process no full-time faculty member has been identified to perform department chair duties, and with CIO approval, Unit Members may serve as Department Chairs. If a Department Chair has

been identified, Unit Members may, upon invitation, perform Department Chair duties and receive appropriate compensation.

C. Mailboxes

A mailbox will be provided to each Unit Member on the primary campus of instruction each term, in the campus mailroom.

D. Office Space

Unit Members shall have access to office and storage space as well as computer and phone access, at least as currently provided. The District will provide Bonelli 312, Boykin 115, and CCC 507 for the use of part-time faculty in the performance of course preparation, office hours, and other academic related activities.

E. Travel

If a Unit Member uses his/her own vehicle for pre-approved District business, per District policy, the District shall:

- 1. Provide reimbursement at the District's established rate per mile, if requested.
- 2. Upon receipt of adequate proof of loss, reimburse Unit Members for damage to their personal property in an amount not to exceed two hundred fifty dollars (\$250) or an amount necessary to satisfy any deductible requirements of the Unit Member's personal insurance, whichever is less. Such reimbursement shall not be paid to any Unit Member who received a citation from a law enforcement agency in connection with such property loss unless such citation is dismissed by a court of competent jurisdiction.
- 3. In the event a unit member's assignment based upon the needs of the department and at the specific request of the CIO (or designee) is split between two or more instructional locations (for example, the Valencia campus, the Canyon Country Campus or other off-campus site(s) or satellite(s) or the District) during the course of a regular work day (such that the assignment creates a need to travel between the site(s)) the District shall reimburse for mileage accrued in the course of that day and assignment at the District rate.

F. Parking

The District will pay for parking for unit members for the life of the Agreement.

G. Graduation - Caps and Gowns

Unit members are encouraged to participate in commencement exercises. The District will provide for the free rental of caps and gowns, through the campus Bookstore, for use during the graduation ceremony.

ARTICLE 12: NON-DISCRIMINATION

- A. The District and the AFT agree that all unit members are entitled to equal employment opportunity. The District and AFT will not discriminate against any unit member on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, sex, age, marital status, veteran status, sexual orientation, disability as defined by the American with Disabilities Act and/or Fair Employment and Housing Act or other protected category, in any of its policies, procedures or practices.
- B. AFT and the District recognize that all members of the bargaining unit are entitled to a discriminatory harassment-free work environment.
- C. The District agrees not to discriminate against any Unit Member because of membership in or participation in the lawful activities of the Union.

ARTICLE 13: GRIEVANCE

A. Definitions

- 1. A "grievance" is a claim by a Unit Member (employee) that there has been a violation of a specific provision of the Agreement.
- 2. "Academic year" is the period commencing with the first day of Fall Semester and ending on the day of commencement.
- 3. An "aggrieved person" or "grievant" is the Unit Member (employee) or group of unit members (employees) who believes he/she or they has/ have been adversely affected or the Union.
- 4. "Workday": A workday is defined as any day on which the central administrative offices of the District are open for business during the Fall and Spring Semesters.

B. General Provisions

- 1. The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible administrative level, an equitable solution to a grievance.
- 2. Until the final disposition of the grievance(s), the grievant is required to conform to the directions of his or her immediate supervisor.
- 3. Both parties agree that these procedures will be kept as informal as may be appropriate at any level of the procedure.
- 4. The aggrieved Unit Member(s) may request that the Union represent them, but nothing contained herein will be construed as limiting the right of any Unit Member having a perceived grievance to discuss the matter informally with the Department Chair and/or any appropriate member of the administration, and to have the grievance adjusted without intervention by the Union. The grievant shall be entitled upon request to representation by the AFT at all grievance meetings. In situations in which AFT has not been requested to represent the grievant, the District shall not agree to a final resolution of the grievance until AFT has received a copy of the grievance and the proposed settlement and has been given the opportunity to file a response to the matter within ten (10) workdays.
- 5. All grievance level forms must be filed with Human Resources. Human Resources will distribute copies to the appropriate respondents.
- 6. Grievances shall be processed as rapidly as possible, the time limits specified at each level should be considered to be the maximum and every effort should be made to expedite the process. However, the time limits may be extended by mutual written agreement of both parties.
- 7. If a grievance is not processed by the grievant and/or the Union in accordance with the time limits set forth in this Agreement, it shall not be subject to further procedures and shall be considered withdrawn. If the District fails to respond to the grievance within the time limit specified at each level, the failure to respond shall be deemed a denial of the grievance and termination of the level involved. The grievant may proceed to the next step.
- 8. Forms for this grievance procedure shall be mutually agreed to and should include 1) a description of the specific grounds for the grievance 2) a listing of the provisions of the Agreement which are alleged to have been violated 3) a statement of the action(s) requested of the District which will resolve the grievance. These forms shall be printed available online in a fillable format suitable for electronic distribution. Distributed and readily available in adequate numbers to facilitate the procedure. The costs of printing and distribution shall be borne by the District.

- 9. In the event a grievance is filed at such a time that it cannot be processed through all the steps within this grievance procedure by the end of the academic year and, if left unresolved until the beginning of the following academic year, this delay could result in harm to an aggrieved person, the time limits set forth herein will be reduced so that the procedure may be completed prior to the end of the academic year, or as soon thereafter as may be agreeable to the grievant and the District.
- 10. Grievances of a similar or like nature may be joined as a single grievance upon the written consent of the grievants involved. Should the grievants so consolidate, the final grievance decision shall be binding upon all parties to the consolidated grievance.
- 11. All grievance documents and/or files shall be maintained in a separate section of the Human Resources filing system, labeled "The Grievance File." This pertains to all participants, at all levels, in the grievance matter. Access to the electronic The Grievance File shall belimited to the grievant, authorized AFT representatives, and District personnel charged with the processing of grievances on a need-to-know basis.

C. Procedure

1. Level One – Informal - Department Chair

- a. If and after the member has attempted to resolve the matter with the department chair without notification to Human Resources or the division dean, the grievant shall attempt to resolve the matter by submitting a "Level One" informal grievance form to Human Resources within twenty (20) workdays after the occurrence or after the grievant should reasonably have been aware of the occurrence of the act or omission giving rise to the grievance.
 - (1) Grievances in which the grievant is the Union itself are initiated at Level Two.
- b. Within ten (10) workdays of filing the "Level One" informal grievance form, the department chair will hold an informal conference with the grievant.
- c. Within ten (10) workdays of the informal conference, the department chair shall give their written response to the individual grievant. If the response does not resolve the issue tothe satisfaction of the grievant, then they may, within ten (10) workdays of the departmentchair's response, file a formal Level Two grievance.

2. Level Two – Formal

If the grievance is not resolved at Level One, the grievant will have ten (10) workdays, from the date of the department chair's written response, to submit to Human Resources, the formal Level Two written grievance on the official grievance form.

Within ten (10) workdays after filing the Level Two formal grievance form, the Division Dean shall meet with the grievant and within ten (10) additional workdays after their meeting, provide his or her written response to the grievant.

3. Level Three - Formal

- i. If the grievance is not resolved at Level Two, the grievant will have ten (10) workdays from receipt of the Level Two written email response in which he or she may submit to the CHRO or designee a Level Three formal written grievance on the electronic grievance form.
- ii. Alleged violations not presented at Level Two may not be introduced at any other level, andno evidence or testimony given shall be the cause for expanding the grievance.
- iii. The CHRO or designee shall promptly forward the statement of grievance to the Chief Instructional Officer (CIO) or Chief Student Services Officer (CSSO) or their designee, and shall provide the name of that person to the grievant.
- iv. Within ten (10) workdays after receiving the grievance, the Chief Instructional Officer (CIO) or Chief Student Services Officer (CSSO) or their designee shall meet with the parties and shall within ten (10) workdays of their meeting provide his or her response via email in writing to the grievant.

4. Level Four - Mediation

If the grievance is not resolved at Level Three, the grievant will have ten (10) workdays from receipt of the <u>written email</u> response from the Chief Instructional Officer (CIO) or Chief Student Services Officer (CSSO) or their designee in which he or she may process the grievance to mediation by filing a Level Four grievance on the appropriate grievance form with the CHRO or designee.

- A. If the grievant agrees to mediation, then the CHRO shall, within ten (10) workdays after the receipt of the <u>written email</u>request, submit to the California State Conciliation Service a request for the immediate services of a mediator. The grievant or AFT and the District will mutually agree to the selection of the mediator.
- B. The function of the mediator shall be to assist the parties to achieve a mutually satisfactory resolution of the grievance by means of the mediation process.
- C. Either party may choose to terminate the mediation in writing.

5. Level Five – Formal, Advisory Arbitration

A. Arbitrated Grievance: If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision at Level Threeor the grievance has not been resolved through mediation, he/she may request AFT to submit the grievance to arbitration within ten (10) workdays of receipt of the Level Threeresponse or within ten (10) workdays of the conclusion of mediation. If AFT concurs with the grievant's request for advisory arbitration, the District and AFT shall select an arbitrator from the California State Mediation and Conciliation Service by the method ofalternate striking from a list of arbitrators supplied by the CSM and

- CS. The request for such list shall be made by the District within five (5) days of the receipt of the Level Five appeal. The striking and resultant request for an arbitration hearing date shall be made by AFT as soon after receipt of the arbitrator list as possible.
- B. The arbitrator shall render a recommendation to the CHRO as soon as possible. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to delete, add to or otherwise modify the provisions of this Agreement. The arbitrator's authority shall be limited to deciding whether the District has violated, misinterpreted or misapplied the referred to express provision of this Agreement and such decision shall not imply obligations and conditions to restrict the District in its administration of the terms of this Agreement; it being understood that any matter not specifically set forth herein remains within the management rights of the District.

6. Formal Level, Level Six – Board of Trustees

The decision of the arbitrator within the limits herein prescribed shall be in the form of a recommendation to the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees shall undertake review of the advisory recommendation and take formal action accepting or rejecting the advisory recommendation. The Board of Trustees shall then render a decision on the matter, which decision shall be final and binding on all parties.

D. Miscellaneous

- 1. No reprisals of any kind will be taken by the CEO of the District or by any member or representative of the administration of the District against any aggrieved person, any member of the Union, or any other participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.
- 2. The aggrieved Unit Member may represent him or herself at all stages of the grievance, and if requested by the grievant, one (1) chapter representative and one (1) area representative of the Union or personal legal counsel of their choice may accompany the grievant through the levels of the process. Personal legal counsel in this local process may not represent the aggrieved person.
- 3. Time limits provided in each level shall begin at the expiration of the previous time limit or the day following receipt of written decision by the parties in interest.
- 4. Grievance meetings will be scheduled by the District so as not to conflict with classroom duties.
- 5. From the time a grievance is filed until it is processed through its completion or closure, neither party shall make public either the grievance or evidence regarding the grievance. This will constitute a breach of confidentiality.
- 6. The fees and expenses of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the District and the AFT.

ARTICLE 14: HIRING PROCESS FOR FACULTY CONTRACT POSITIONS

When there is a selection process for contract faculty positions, a minimum of three (3) Unit Members who are the highest ranked through the hiring committee process, will be invited to the first level interview.

Information regarding the Academic Staffing Process and current status of full-time faculty positions is posted at: https://appi.canyons.edu/Apps/Directories/Committees/Details/2

ARTICLE 15: INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS

In the absence of a separate and expressly written agreement between a Unit Member and the District to the contrary, a Unit Member shall have exclusive property rights to materials, devices, and processes developed by the Unit Member unless they have utilized District resources or have developed the materials, devises, or processes on District time.

ARTICLE 16: RETIREMENT ARTICLE

- A. The District will offer a choice of retirement plans for bargaining unit members as follows:
 - 1. FICA: a federally mandated program (Federal Insurance Contributions Act, i.e., Social Security Agency);
 - 2. STRS (State Teachers' Retirement System) Defined Benefits plan: a state mandated program; or
 - 3. STRS (State Teachers' Retirement System) Cash Balance Benefits Plan; a plan created for part-time and substitute educators, effective in 1996.
- B. Bargaining unit members upon employment may select 1, 2, or 3 above. After initial selection, the unit member may make a one-time only change to another available plan if permitted by law.
- C. The District will calculate STRS retirement pre-tax.
- D. The FTE reporting mechanism to STRS is listed as FTE of the Unit Member based upon Full-time Equivalent at 15 hours a week = 525 hours per year.
- E. Upon the request of the employee at the time of his or her retirement, accumulated sick leave hours will be reported to STRS to be converted to service credit.
- F. The STRS Defined Benefit Plan requires an employer contribution (currently 8.25%) and an employee contribution (currently 8.0%).
- G. The STRS Cash Balance Plan requires a total current contribution of 8% of gross salary: currently 4% from the District and currently 4% from the Unit Member. Cash Balance participants have an immediate vested right to their contribution and the District's contribution. The Cash Balance Plan shall be portable between different districts. Benefits shall be available to unit members upon retirement, disability, or termination of employment as determined by STRS.

ARTICLE 17: SAVINGS PROVISION

If any provision of this Agreement is held to be contrary to law by legislative act or by a court of competent jurisdiction, such provision(s), will not be deemed valid and subsisting except to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions will continue in full force and effect.

ARTICLE 18: ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Reference: BP 4030

Reference: Education Code section 76120; Title 5 section 51023; Accreditation Standard I.C.7; 1940 Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure with Interpretative Comments, in AAUP POLICY DOCUMENTS & REPORTS (11th ed. 2015)

A. General Principles on Academic Freedom

- 1. The free expression guarantee provided by the United States Constitution's First Amendment is vital to America's democracy; the functioning of democratic institutions depends on the people's freedom to vigorously discuss, debate, disagree, challenge and dialogue on all topics of public concern.
- 2. To fulfill its civic and educational mission, an institution of higher education must encourage its campus community to comprehend and value the importance of the right of free expression to an open society and an educated populace.
- 3. Developing the critical inquiry and thought required for individual success and societal progress can only occur in an academic environment that promotes an open and free exchange of ideas and freedom of expression must, therefore, extend to students and faculty in an educational environment.
- 4. The College supports academic freedom for its faculty and students and encourages them to develop and engage in opportunities for critical thinking and personal growth without compromising the respect to which all persons are entitled.

B. Academic Freedom and the Faculty

1. The District adopts the definition of academic freedom provided by the 1940 Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure, including the 1970 Interpretive Comments. That definition, in summary, declares that academic freedom is the freedom to teach, both in and outside the classroom, to conduct research and to publish the results of those investigations, and to address any matter of institutional policy or action whether or not as a member of an agency of institutional governance. Professors should also have the freedom to address the larger community with regard to any matter of social, political, economic or other interest, without institutional discipline or restraint, save in response to fundamental violations of professional ethics or statements that suggest disciplinary incompetence.

C. Academic Freedom and Students

- 1. By engaging in academic study within the District, students should accept that they will study in an environment designed to present a full, open, and thoughtful range of academic insights, perspectives, and viewpoints and that they are likely to be exposed to conflicting and controversial views as a result.
- 2. Academic freedom allows students to take reasoned exception to the concepts and conclusions presented in any course of study in a manner that is consistent with the District's Code of Student Conduct. Students remain responsible, however, for learning the content of any course in which they are enrolled, and can expect to be evaluated on their knowledge of such information.

D. District Responsibilities and Support

- 1. The District is committed to the full support of the principle of academic freedom within all its activities.
- 2. The District supports the freedom of all faculty to inquire, to teach controversial content, to

- model and encourage critical thinking, and to present multiple viewpoints within each discipline.
- 3. The District supports the freedom of all students to inquire, access the full range of information available, explore difficult and controversial material, develop and practice critical thinking skills, and learn in a climate free of intimidation and conducive to the free exchange of ideas.
- 4. The District recognizes that the California Education Code grants faculty the right and the professional responsibility to assign grades free from political influence, intimidation, or legal threat.

E. Role of Academic Senate

1. The Academic Senate shall establish a Committee on Academic Freedom to provide clarification and advice on matters relating to academic freedom.

See Administrative Procedure AP 4030

Approved: 11/10/2020

Next Review Date: Fall, 2026.

The District has both a Board Policy and Administrative Procedure regarding Academic Freedom. To ensure you are reviewing the most recent version of the BP and AP 4030, please see the links below.

Please find the most recent Board Policy at:

https://www.canyons.edu/_resources/documents/administration/board/bp-ap/4000academicaffairs/BP4030.pdf

<u>Please find the most recent Administrative Procedure at:</u>
https://www.canyons.edu/_resources/documents/administration/board/bp-ap/4000academicaffairs/AP4030.pdf

See Appendix C: Board Policy 4030 Academic Freedom

ARTICLE 19: PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

- A. Effective Fall, 2015–2021 unit members who successfully complete a 54-hour-professional development program (currently the Skilled Teacher Certificate) non-credit teaching foundation certificate of completion will remain at their earnedstep, and will be advanced to the Associate range on the salary schedule per Appendix A, effective the following summer session.
 - 1. The District is committed to reserving twenty (20) seats for Unit Members.
- B. Unit members who attend College sponsored FLEX and approved department activities, including the professional development program from Section A above, will earn their regular hourly rate for up to 5 hours and up to an additional 4 hours of FLEX at the non-instructional rate for each summer/fall and winter/spring period. Unit members have the option to present FLEX workshops for double the FLEX hours, up to the maximum hours stated above (i.e. presenting a 1 hour workshop would equate to 2 FLEX hours).
 - 1. Approved department activities include: department retreats, department retreat presentations, and departmental trainings that have been approved for FLEX credit.
 - 2. Unit members will be given reasonable advanced notice of department retreats. Every effort will be made to schedule such retreats at times convenient to encourage maximum attendance.
 - 3. The following training deemed mandatory by California law:
 - Anti-harassment training (non-supervisory)
 - Mandatory Report (Protect the Children)
 not to exceed 2 hours per academic year, will be completed during the semester/session
 assigned and eligible for FLEX pay as outlined in B above. Unit members will be given
 reasonable advanced notice of mandatory training.
 - 2.4.Only training or professional development, as defined by the Faculty FLEX Committee, is eligible for FLEX credit. Departmental or District support activities such as, but not limited to maintaining department web pages, assisting with faculty scheduling, and class calendaring, are not considered FLEX eligible. Activities such as these must be approved in advance by the division dean and would be paid the applicable hourly non-instructional rate per Article 11.
 - 3.5. Unit members who have either a winter or spring assignment may attend FLEX activities from January 1st through June 30th. Unit Members who have a summer or fall assignment may attend FLEX activities from July 1st through December 31st.
- C. The District will make every effort to inform unit members of the FLEX schedule in ample time to enroll. The District will also make an effort to offer some FLEX opportunities at a time convenient for part-time faculty attendance. FLEX is not mandatory; however, unit members are encouraged to attend.
- D. If the District directs a Unit member to attend a conference or meeting, all of his or her necessary and reasonable costs for fees, travel, board, and lodging shall be reimbursed by the District.

ARTICLE 20: OFFICE HOURS

- A. Office Hours: Time, Place, and Manner
 - 1. Office hours are to be scheduled to meet the needs of all on-ground, online, and hybrid students, whether students are enrolled in full semester-length or short-term classes, and the needs of the educational program of the District.

 Instructors of noncredit classes that are mirrored with credit classes, where a single class consists of both credit and noncredit students, will provide access to their existing office hours for the noncredit students in this section.
 - 2. The provisions of this article do not apply to non-instructional faculty (for example, counselors and librarians).
 - 3. Each scheduled period of on campus (or site) office time shall be scheduled during regular college (or site) business hours.
 - 4. Half of the office hours for a course must be conducted on a regular schedule, either on the campus (or site) where the course is scheduled or through virtual means. This portion of the office hours will be considered "scheduled office hours".
 - a. Virtual office hours must be conducted via the District's approved Learning Management System (LMS) or CCC Confer. The District will ensure that instructors have a reliable means of conducting virtual office hours. Virtual office hours require instructor login and telepresence throughout the period and must include video or other synchronous communication options for students.
 - b. If an instructor elects to hold virtual office hours for the scheduled portion of an on-ground (or site) class, and a student in the on-ground (or site) class requests an in-person meeting, the instructor will offer to meet with that student onground (or site) at a reasonable day and time within one week.
 - 5. Half of the office hours for a course may be conducted per individual arrangements between the student and the unit member. This portion of the office hours will be considered "unscheduled office hours".
 - a. Unscheduled office hours are in-person or computer-mediated communications or phone calls.
 - b. The instructor's e-mail address will be included in the class syllabus.
 - c. If an instructor is not available to students via e-mail, all of the office hours for that instructor must be scheduled office hours.
 - 6. Each scheduled period of office time shall be scheduled during a time that students are reasonably expected to be available. During the fall and spring semesters, each unit member shall maintain office hours for on-ground (or site), online, and hybrid classes as per the table below. For courses that consist of tandem lecture and lab, office hours are based on the units per week associated with the lecture only.

7.

On-	Number of	Number of	Total Office
Campus	Scheduled	Unscheduled	Hours per
(or Site)	Office Hours	Office Hours	Week
Units per	(minutes)	(minutes)	(minutes)
week			
3	30	30	60
4	40	40	80
5	50	50	100
6	60	60	120
7	70	70	140
8	80	80	160
9	90	90	180
10	100	100	200
11	110	110	220
12	120	120	240
13	120	120	240
14	130	130	260
15	140	140	280
16	150	150	300

The Within one week after the commencement of the semester, the unit member shall prepare and submit their proposed schedule of office hours to theinstructional dean via the District's office hours reporting website. Scheduled office hours may be held at a time to be determined after the unit member has surveyed their students but must be determined no later than the Census date. Changes to scheduled office hours must be communicated to the students via email and must be updated on the District's office hours reporting website.

- 8. Office hours must be included in each course syllabus along with campus (or site) location or LMS/CCC Confer access instructions.
- 9. Cancellation of one or more office hours per day, not properly rescheduled within one week, will result in the use of leave hours equal to the office hour(s) missed.

B. Compensation:

- 1. Scheduled office hours will be compensated as per Article 10.
- 2. Scheduled office hours may be verified by the instructional dean.

C. Miscellaneous:

1. Unit members will not be compensated for hours in excess of the minimum requirement, or for additional hours worked either in person or on line.

ARTICLE 21: NONCREDIT FACULTY

A. Definition

Article 21 applies specifically to noncredit adjunct faculty teaching all or the majority of their teaching load in noncredit. Unless specifically preempted by this article, the entirety of the American Federation of Teachers Local 6262 collective bargaining agreement applies to noncredit adjunct faculty. Noncredit adjunct faculty may be employed in a noncredit assignment for a maximum of two hundred ninety-three (293) instructional hours per semester (i.e., 67% of eight hundred seventy-five [875] instructional hours per school year or four hundred thirty-seven [437] instructional hours per semester as defined by Education Code 22138.5 for full-time noncredit faculty), approved by the State Chancellor in accordance with Section 55100 of Title V of the California Code of Regulations, and for which the District receives funding under Education Code Section 84757 and related statutory and regulatory provisions. Adjunct faculty that teach both noncredit as well as credit classes can only teach 67% of a full-time load. A noncredit assignment may consist of both noncredit CDCP* (Career Development College Preparation or enhanced) as well as noncredit non-enhanced courses as per the ten noncredit categories below:

- 1. English as a Second Language*
- 2. Immigrant Education
- 3. Elementary and Secondary Basic Skills*
- 4. Health and Safety
- 5. Substantial Disabilities
- 6. Parenting
- 7. Home Economics
- 8. Courses for Older Adults
- 9. Short-term Vocational Programs*
- 10. Workforce Preparation*

The minimum qualifications for noncredit faculty are specified in Title V Section 53412 of the California Code of Regulations.

B. Responsibilities

- 1. Noncredit faculty shall be responsible for meeting their assigned classes on time and regularly. Locations for these assigned classes can include District sites and/or off-campus sites within the Santa Clarita Valley.
- 2. Noncredit faculty shall also be responsible for class preparation, all required record keeping, and timely submission of all required District and State records and reports.
- 3. Where appropriate, noncredit faculty shall also be responsible for being informed about the credit program of the District and for preparing students to transition into the College's credit program.

C. Assignment and Scheduling

It is in the best interest of the District and the intent of both parties to hire experienced, noncredit faculty to work with a cohort of noncredit students either at the College and/or particular off-campus site.

1. When there is a need for noncredit faculty service beyond that provided by regular, contract, and /or other District full-time faculty, the following are the factors to be considered in developing the work assignment of noncredit unit members for all semesters and sessions.

- Minimum qualifications and/or appropriate certification (Title V Section 53412)
- Demonstrated competency, expertise and/or training in the discipline, sub-field of the discipline, or particular assignment
- Previous service/experience with the College and/or off-campus site
- Previous overall rating of 4 or 5 in a formal evaluation as per Appendix B or E
- Investigated Complaints
- Availability for the assignment
- Request by the noncredit unit member to continue with the same cohort at the same site as the previous semester
- Unit members who have been or are currently being investigated for a legitimate violation of the District's written policies and procedures, that has been reviewed by Human Resources, may not receive an assignment.
- 2. The Dean of Continuing Education or other appropriate administrator (or his/her designee) shall assign noncredit courses to noncredit faculty, based on criteria outlined in Article 6 sections 6.3, 6.4 and 6.5.
- 3. Noncredit adjunct faculty may be employed in a noncredit assignment for a maximum of two hundred ninety-three (293) instructional hours per semester (or 67% of eight hundred seventy-five [875] instructional hours per school year or four hundred thirty-seven [437] instructional hours per semester as defined by Education Code 22138.5 for full-time noncredit faculty). If a noncredit adjunct faculty member is also employed in a credit adjunct assignment, the unit member can still only teach 67% of a full-time load.

For example, consider an ESL unit member who would like to teach a 67% load that consists of a noncredit ESL assignment as well as an ESL-060 credit assignment:

- ESL-060 credit load: 54.00 semester hours = 3.00 units (20% load or 3 units/15 units)
- Noncredit load: 47% remaining noncredit load = 205 noncredit semester hours (47% of 437 hours)
- 4. The District will staff sections no later than the summer session before the start of the fall semester, the fall semester before the start of the winter intersession, the winter session before the start of the spring semester, and the spring semester before the start of the summer session. The District will notify AFT of reasons for exceptions to this timeline. Exceptions to the timeline below may include the following:
 - Uncertainty in funding that results in a reduction or expansion of department course offerings;
 - Change in course availability due to the change in the number of department full-time faculty or full-time faculty reassigned/release time;
 - Change in course offerings due to a change in curriculum, reorganization, or administrative priorities concerning enrollment;
 - Change in off-campus site priorities external to the college; and
 - Technical difficulties with software or data systems.

D. Evaluations

The performance evaluation of noncredit instructors is essential to the maintenance of a quality instructional program. The evaluator should arrive on time and be professional as well as respectful to the noncredit unit member and students in the class.

1. Definitions

- a. The "evaluatee" is the person being evaluated.
- b. The "evaluator" is a full-time faculty member in the related credit department or appropriate educational administrator. The evaluator will be assigned by the Dean of Continuing Education (or his/her designee).
 - If the class to be visited is an online class, the evaluator will have online teaching experience. If the evaluator does not possess online teaching experience, a co-evaluator may be assigned (one assigned as per 1.b. and the other a faculty member or educational administrator with experience in online pedagogy), assigned by the Dean of Distance Learning, where both co-evaluators may not be educational administrators.
 - If co-evaluators are assigned for an evaluation of an online class, the evaluator assigned per 1.b. will complete only that part of the evaluation
- c. An "observation" is the observation of the noncredit unit member, in the performance of his or her duties, by the evaluator.
- d. The "instrument" is the agreed upon Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix B Classroom or Appendix B Online) for noncredit faculty. Non-teaching part-time noncredit faculty will be evaluated using the Non-Instructional Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix E).

2. Scheduling and Frequency

Noncredit instructors shall be evaluated during the first semester of employment and at least one additional time during the next four semesters of employment (as determined by Human Resources). For noncredit faculty that primarily work winter or summer sessions only, they will be evaluated during the applicable session. Thereafter, noncredit instructors will be evaluated at least one time during every four semesters of employment. In the absence of complaints and in the presence of good student evaluations, noncredit instructors who have taught for at least sixteen (16) semesters may be evaluated once every six semesters of employment. However, at the option of the Dean of Continuing Education, Dean of Learning Resources, or other appropriate administrator, a noncredit faculty member may be evaluated when he or she is assigned to teach a new course within the discipline or other discipline the noncredit unit member has not previously taught for the District.

- 3. The complete evaluation documents shall include, but not be limited to, the following items:
 - a. Classroom or Non-Instructional Evaluation Report:
 - i. The evaluator shall make at least one classroom or other work place observation, to be no less than fifty minutes in length whenever possible (but may be longer if the class or lab session observed is longer). An evaluation report based on this observation and other appropriate criteria will be completed on the forms jointly agreed to by both parties.
 - ii. The evaluation report (Appendix B or E) should be completed by the evaluator and submitted to the noncredit faculty member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date. It will then be forwarded to the department chair and division dean (where applicable), who will sign off on the report, indicating that they acknowledge the findings. Any evaluation report

submitted to the part-time noncredit faculty member later than the twenty-eight (28) calendar days is still valid.

4. Online Evaluation Report:

- a. If the class to be evaluated takes place 100% online or hybrid class is 50% or more online, the evaluator shall, during a prearranged and mutually agreed on meeting with the evaluatee, access one current online/hybrid course section for review. If a hybrid class is selected, then the online portion of the class shall be subject to evaluation. The meeting can take place in person or virtually, and should be no less than fifty cumulative minutes in length, but may be longer if the complete section cannot be reviewed within fifty cumulative minutes. The evaluation process should, at a minimum, determine that academically relevant student-instructor contact is regularly initiated by the instructor. Furthermore, the evaluation should, at a minimum, determine that student-instructor and student-student interaction is conducted in alignment with the current Distance Learning Addendum (part of the official course outline of record) for the particular course. An evaluation report based on this observation and other appropriate criteria will be completed on the forms jointly agreed to by both parties.
- b. The evaluation report (Appendix B-Online) should be completed by the evaluator and submitted to the part-time faculty member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date. It will then be forwarded to the department chair and division dean, who will sign off on the report, indicating that they acknowledge the findings. Any evaluation report submitted to the part-time faculty member later than the twenty-eight (28) calendar days is still valid.
- 5. Self-Reflection: Each part-time instructor will complete a written self-reflection, due to the evaluator at least five (5) calendar days before the Evaluation Conference, to be used to improve instruction and not as a determinant of employee status. The self-reflection shall include, but may not be limited to:
 - Objectives for improvement, change or maintenance of methodology based on the results of the student survey, a self-examination of teaching methods, student learning outcomes, assessment data from student learning outcomes or other measures, and whatever other factors that are deemed relevant.
 - A review of the objectives for improvement, if any, from the evaluatee's last evaluation.
 - A summary of professional growth activities. A listing of reasonable resources that can be provided by the District to help improve instructor teaching.
- 6. The Professionalism Report (Appendix D) is an optional report regarding the evaluatee's professionalism and faculty responsibilities. The Professionalism Report is in addition to the Visitation and Evaluation Report (Appendix B and E). This report can be requested by the member, the member's department chair, or the member's division dean any semester or term, irrespective of the member's comprehensive evaluation. If Appendix D is completed during a regular evaluation cycle, the member should be notified via e-mail by the division dean ten (10) days in advance of the final review conference. The Professionalism Report should be submitted to the member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date and will become part of the member's comprehensive evaluation report (when conducted during a regular evaluation cycle). All evaluation documents

- will be placed in the adjunct instructor's District personnel file.
- 7. Evaluation Conference: An evaluation conference will be scheduled by the evaluator, to be held no sooner than seven (7) calendar days after the observation. The conference will deal with, but not be limited to, the items listed above in the classroom evaluation report, Self-Reflection, and Professionalism Report.
- 8. If desired, the evaluatee may submit a written, signed response regarding Appendix E or F to the appropriate educational administrator within fourteen (14) calendar days after the Evaluation Conference. This response along with complete evaluation documents will be included in the noncredit instructor's District personnel file.
- 9. The evaluatee may challenge the initially proposed evaluator and request an alternate evaluator be assigned. The replacement evaluator will be assigned by the division dean in consultation with the department chair. This challenge must be received by the division dean with five (5) calendar days of the communication informing the unit member of the initially proposed evaluator, and may only be exercised once per evaluation.
- 10. In the event the evaluatee feels the evaluation report and/or overall evaluation score is inaccurate or non-representational, the evaluatee may request a second evaluation to be conducted by a different evaluator.
- 11. The evaluatee must submit a written request for a second evaluation to the division dean within five (5) workdays of receipt of the completed evaluation form, specifying the perceived problem with the original evaluation and the justification for a second evaluation.
- 12. The evaluatee will receive a written response to the request for a second evaluation within ten (10) workdays of the request.
 - a. If a second evaluation is granted, it may be scheduled during the same semester (or term) or during the following semester.
 - b. If a second evaluation is not granted, the response must include specific reason(s) for denying the request based on substantive, not staffing, criteria. Refusal to grant a second evaluation is grievable by the evaluatee or AFT.
- 13. All evaluation documents as described above should be submitted to Human Resources by the division dean before the end of the respective semester or session that the evaluation occurred.

ARTICLE 22: DISCIPLINE

The District and the AFT shall be committed to resolving performance problems at the informal level, whenever possible. However, when a problem arises, the Unit Member may be subject to discipline. Discipline shall be administered in a timely manner once the District is aware of the issue, and be for just cause.

If a District administrator requests a meeting with a Unit Member that could result in the discipline of the Unit Member, the District will notify the Unit Member of his/her right to have a representative at the meeting and inform the Unit Member of the reason for the meeting.

APPENDIX A: ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULES

		SANTA CL	ARITA CO	MMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT			
			COLLEGE	OF THE O	CANYONS				
		A	ADJUNCT :	SALARY SO	CHEDULE 9	9			
				2014-2015	5				
Compensat	ion for Acaden	ni c & As soci a	ate Credit Ad	junct (Hourly) Faculty and	Enhanced No	ncredit (Ho	urly) Faculty	
		Step	Step	Step					
	Range	1	2	3					
	1	57.41	61.43	63.27	*	Academic	Adjunct (Base Pay)	
	2	63.15	67.57	69.60	**	Associate A	Adjunct (I	Base Pay)	
	3	63.15	67.57	69.60	***	Academic	Adjunct v	vith Doctor	ate
	4	69.47	74.33	76.56	****	Associate A	Adjunct w	vith Doctor	ate
Method	of placemen	t on the Ac	cademic Ac	<u>djunct (Hoυ</u>	ırly) Salary	Schedule is	<u>s:</u>		
*1.	All adjunct	t (hourly) ir	nstructors	are initially	placed on	Range 1/5	Step 1 of	the	
	Academic	Adjunct (H	ourly) Sala	ry Schedu	e.				
2.	Advancem	ent to Step	2 of the s	alary sche	dule requir	es that an a	adjunct (h	ourly)	
	instructor	complete 1	four (4) se	mesters of	service (ex	xcluding sui	mmer and	dintersess	on
3.	Advancem	ent to Step	3 of the s	alary sche	dule requir	es that an a	idjunct (h	ourly) inst	uc
	complete	six (6) sem	esters of s	ervice at S	tep 2 (excl	uding sumn	ner and ir	ntersession	s).
**4.	Placement	t on Range	2 of the As	ssociate Ac	ljunct (Hou	ırly) Salary S	Schedule	requires:	
	The comp	letion of th	e Professi	onal Devel	opment pr	ogram spec	ified in A	rticle 19 A.	
	OR								
	The comp	letion of tw	velve (12)	units of tea	ching met	hodology a	nd/or cou	ırsework in	
	the area o	f assignme	nt. The co	ursework n	nust be pre	e-approved	by the CI	0.	
***5.		-				ate (Ph.D. o			
_	relevant fi	eld from ai	n accredite	ed institution	on will be p	olaced on R	ange 3 of	the	
									1
		Adjunct (H	ourly) Sala	ry Schedu	e.				
	Academic	Adjunct (H							_
****6.	Academic Associate	Adjunct (H Adjunct ins	structors w	ith an earr	ed doctora	ate (Ph.D. o			
****6.	Associate relevant fi	Adjunct (H Adjunct ins eld from a	structors w	rith an earr	ed doctora	ate (Ph.D. o placed on R			
****6.	Associate relevant fi	Adjunct (H Adjunct ins	structors w	rith an earr	ed doctora				
	Associate relevant fi	Adjunct (H Adjunct ins eld from ar Adjunct (H	structors w n accredite ourly) Sala	rith an earr	ed doctora				

			SANTA CLA	ARITA CON	MMUNITY	COLLEGE	DISTRICT			
				COLLEGE	OF THE	CANYONS				
			Δ	DJUNCT S	CHEDULE 9)				
					2015-2016					
	Compensati	on for Acaden	nic & Associa	te Credit Ac	djunct (Hour	ly) Faculty a	nd Enhanced	Noncredit	(Hourly) Fac	ulty
			Step	Step	Step					
		Range	1	2	3					
		1	60.28	64.50	66.44	*	Academic	Adjunct (E	Base Pay)	
		2	66.31	70.95	73.08	**	Associate	Adjunct (E	Base Pay)	
		3	66.31	70.95	73.08	***	Academic	Adjunct w	ith Doctor	ate
		4	72.94	78.05	80.39	****	Associate	Adjunct w	ith Doctor	ate
	Method o	of placemen	t on the Ac	ademic Ad	ljunct (Hou	irly) Salary	Schedule i	<u>s:</u>		
*	*1.	All adjunct	(hourly) in	structors a	are initially	placed on	Range 1/	Step 1 of t	he	
		-	Adjunct (Ho			-	<u> </u>			
			, ,	.,	•					
	2.	Advancem	ent to Step	2 of the s	alary sche	dule requir	es that an	adjunct (h	ourly)	
			complete f							ons).
	3.	Advancem	ent to Step	3 of the s	alary sche	dule requir	es that an	adjunct (h	ourly) instr	uctor
		complete s	six (6) sem	esters of s	ervice at S	tep 2 (excl	uding sumi	mer and in	tersession	s).
			. ,							İ
**	**'4.	Placement	on Range	2 of the As	sociate Ad	ljunct (Hou	ırly) Salary	Schedule	requires:	
			etion of th							
		OR								
			etion of tw	elve (12) ι	units of tea	aching met	hodology a	nd/or cou	rsework in	1
			fassignmer							
***	***'5.	Academic /	Adjunct ins	tructors w	ith an earı	ned doctor	ate (Ph.D. o	or Ed.D.) in	a	
			eld from ar							
			Adjunct (Ho					_		
			,	.,	•					
****	****'6.	Associate A	Adjunct ins	tructors wi	ith an earr	ed doctora	ate (Ph.D. c	or Ed.D.) in	а	
			eld from ar							
			Adjunct (Ho			-				
			,	,,	,					
		ll cc	07/04	/2045						
	Salary Scr	neaule effec	tive: 07/01	/2015						

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 9 2017-2018

Compensation for Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit (Hourly) Faculty

	Step	Step	Step		
Range	1	2	3		
1	62.38	66.74	68.75	*	Academic Adjunct (Base Pay)
2	68.62	73.42	75.62	**	Associate Adjunct (Base Pay)
3	68.62	73.42	75.62	***	Academic Adjunct with Doctorate
4	75.48	80.77	83.19	****	Associate Adjunct with Doctorate

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Range 1 / Step 1 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
 - 2. Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
 - 3. Advancement to Step 3 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete six (6) semesters of service at Step 2 (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 4. Placement on Range 2 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires: The completion of the Professional Development program specified in Article 19 A. OR

The completion of twelve (12) units of teaching methodology and/or coursework in the area of assignment. The coursework must be pre-approved by the CIO.

- 5. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 3 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 6. Associate Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 4 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2017

Board Approved: 06/27/18

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 9 2018-2019

Compensation for Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit (Hourly) Faculty

	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>		
<u>Range</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>		
1	64.69	69.22	71.30	*	Academic Adjunct (Base Pay)
<u>2</u>	71.17	<u>76.14</u>	<u>78.43</u>	**	Associate Adjunct (Base Pay)
<u>3</u>	71.17	76.14	78.43	***	Academic Adjunct with Doctorate
4	78.28	83.77	86.28	****	Associate Adjunct with Doctorate

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

*	1.	All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Range 1 / Step 1 of the Academic
_		Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

- 2. Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- 3. Advancement to Step 3 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete six (6) semesters of service at Step 2 (excluding summer and intersessions).
- 4. Placement on Range 2 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires: The completion of the Professional Development program specified in Article 19 A.

OR

The completion of twelve (12) units of teaching methodology and/or coursework in the area of assignment. The coursework must be pre-approved by the CIO.

- 5. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 3 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 6. Associate Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range4 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2018 Board Approved: 10/14/20

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 9 2019-2020

Compensation for Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit (Hourly) Faculty

	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>		
<u>Range</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	<u>3</u>		
1	65.98	<u>70.60</u>	72.73	*	Academic Adjunct (Base Pay)
<u>2</u>	72.59	<u>77.66</u>	80.00	**	Associate Adjunct (Base Pay)
<u>3</u>	72.59	<u>77.66</u>	80.00	***	Academic Adjunct with Doctorate
<u>4</u>	79.85	85.45	<u>88.01</u>	****	Associate Adjunct with Doctorate

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Range 1 / Step 1 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
 - 2. Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
 - 3. Advancement to Step 3 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete six (6) semesters of service at Step 2 (excluding summer and intersessions).mast
- ** 4. Placement on Range 2 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires: The completion of the Professional Development program specified in Article 19 A.

<u>OR</u>

The completion of twelve (12) units of teaching methodology and/or coursework in the area of assignment. The coursework must be pre-approved by the CIO.

- *** 5. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 3 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- **** 6. Associate Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 4 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2019

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS

PROPOSED ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 9

2020-21

Compensation for Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit (Hourly)

<u>Step</u>	_ <u>A</u>	<u>Range</u> <u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	D
				<u>D</u>
<u>01</u>	67.25	69.94	73.97	76.66
<u>02</u>	<u>67.92</u>	<u>70.63</u>	<u>74.71</u>	<u>77.43</u>
<u>03</u>	<u>68.60</u>	<u>71.34</u>	<u>75.46</u>	<u>78.20</u>
<u>04</u>	69.28	<u>72.05</u>	<u>76.21</u>	<u>78.98</u>
<u>05</u>	<u>69.98</u>	<u>72.78</u>	<u>76.97</u>	<u>79.77</u>
<u>06</u>	<u>70.68</u>	<u>73.50</u>	<u>77.74</u>	80.57
<u>07</u>	<u>71.38</u>	<u>74.24</u>	<u>78.52</u>	<u>81.38</u>
<u>08</u>	<u>72.10</u>	<u>74.98</u>	<u>79.31</u>	82.19
<u>09</u>	<u>72.82</u>	<u>75.73</u>	80.10	<u>83.01</u>
<u>10</u>	<u>73.55</u>	<u>76.49</u>	80.90	83.84
<u>11</u>	<u>74.28</u>	<u>77.25</u>	<u>81.71</u>	84.68
<u>12</u>	<u>75.02</u>	<u>78.02</u>	<u>82.53</u>	<u>85.53</u>
<u>13</u>	<u>75.77</u>	<u>78.81</u>	<u>83.35</u>	86.38
<u>14</u>	<u>76.53</u>	<u>79.59</u>	84.18	<u>87.25</u>
<u>15</u>	<u>77.30</u>	80.39	<u>85.03</u>	88.12
<u>16</u>	<u>78.07</u>	<u>81.19</u>	<u>85.88</u>	89.00
<u>17</u>	<u>78.85</u>	82.00	86.74	89.89
<u>18</u>	<u>79.64</u>	82.82	87.60	90.79
<u>19</u>	80.44	<u>83.65</u>	88.48	91.70
<u>20</u>	81.24	84.49	89.36	92.61
<u>* Range 1</u>	Credit & Enha	<u>inced Noncredit Adju</u>	nct (Base	e Pay)
<u>**</u> <u>Range 2</u>	Credit & Enha	<u>ınced Noncredit Adju</u>	nct + CF	<u> </u>
*** <u>Range 3</u>	Credit & Enha	nced Noncredit Adju	nct with	<u>Doctorate</u>
<u>****</u> <u>Range 4</u>	Credit & Enha	<u>ınced Noncredit Adju</u>	nct with	Doctorate + CFT

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1 of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

 Advancement to each subsequent Step after initial placement on the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete two (2) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Placement on Range B of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A.
- *** 3. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range C of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 4. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution and the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A will be placed on Range D of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2020

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 9 2021-22

Compensation for Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit (Hourly)

		Ran	<u>ge</u>	
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>01</u>	70.78	<u>73.61</u>	77.86	80.69
<u>02</u>	71.49	74.35	<u>78.64</u>	<u>81.50</u>
<u>03</u>	72.21	<u>75.09</u>	<u>79.43</u>	82.31
<u>04</u>	72.93	<u>75.84</u>	80.22	<u>83.14</u>
<u>05</u>	<u>73.66</u>	<u>76.60</u>	81.02	<u>83.97</u>
<u>06</u>	74.39	77.37	<u>81.83</u>	<u>84.81</u>
<u>07</u>	<u>75.14</u>	<u>78.14</u>	82.65	<u>85.66</u>
<u>80</u>	<u>75.89</u>	78.92	83.48	<u>86.51</u>
<u>09</u>	<u>76.65</u>	<u>79.71</u>	<u>84.31</u>	<u>87.38</u>
<u>10</u>	<u>77.41</u>	80.51	<u>85.16</u>	88.25
<u>11</u>	<u>78.19</u>	<u>81.32</u>	<u>86.01</u>	<u>89.13</u>
<u>12</u>	<u>78.97</u>	<u>82.13</u>	86.87	90.03
<u>13</u>	<u>79.76</u>	82.95	87.74	90.93
<u>14</u>	<u>80.56</u>	<u>83.78</u>	<u>88.61</u>	<u>91.84</u>
<u>15</u>	<u>81.36</u>	84.62	89.50	92.75
<u>16</u>	<u>82.18</u>	<u>85.46</u>	90.39	93.68
<u>17</u>	83.00	86.32	91.30	94.62
<u>18</u>	83.83	<u>87.18</u>	92.21	<u>95.56</u>
<u>19</u>	84.67	88.05	93.13	96.52
<u>20</u>	<u>85.51</u>	88.93	94.06	97.49

*	Range 1	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay)
**	Range 2	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct + CFT
***	Range 3	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate
***	Range 4	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate + CFT

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1 of the Adjunct (Hourly)

 Salary Schedule. Advancement to each subsequent Step after initial placement on the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete two (2) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Placement on Range B of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A.
- *** 3. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range C of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 4. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution and the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A will be placed on Range D of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: Board Approved:

,	SANTA C					TRICT	
				HE CANY			
NC	NCREDI	T ADJUI			EDULE 8	3	
			2014-	2015			
С	ompensa	tion for No	oncredit A	djunct (H	ourly) Fac	ulty	
	<u> </u>						
			\$35.71	/ Hour			
			,				
Salary S	Schedule ef	fective: 07	7/01/14				
	Approved: 5		, - ,				
200.07		, _1, _010					

	SANTA CI	ARITA C	OMMI IN	ITVCOLL	EGE DIS	TRICT	
	OANTA CI					TINGT	
				HE CANY			
	NONCF	redit ad	DJUNCT:	SALARY	SCHEDU	LE 8	
			2015-20 ²	16			
,	Comper	nsation fo	r Noncred	it Adiunct	(Hourly)	acultv	
	23				\		
			407.50	/ 1 1			
			\$37.50	/ Hour			
	Salary	Schedule	effective:	07/01/15			
			: 5/11/201				
		1 1	· · · · • ·	-			

	SANT			ALINITY C	OLLEGE	DISTRIC	 	
	OAN				ANYONS		' I	
	NON				RYSCHE			
	1101	OKEBII		6-2017	(1 OOTIL	JOLL 0		
		Ff		igust 19, 2	2016			
			1000110710	guot 10, 1				
Compe	nsation fo	r Noncred	dit Adjunct	t (Hourly)	Faculty			
•			,					
	Step	Step						
Range	1	2						
1	37.50	40.13	* None	credit Adju	nct (Base	Pay w/Bad	helor's D	egree)
2	40.13	42.94	** Nonc	redit Adju	nct (Base I	Pay w/Mas	ster's Deg	ree)
3	41.25	44.14	*** Nonc	redit Adjur	nct Bachel	or's + Prof	. Dev. per	Article 19
4	44.14	47.23	*** Nonc	redit Adjur	nct Master'	s + Prof. [Dev. per A	rticle 19
Method	of placeme	ent on the	Noncredit	Adjunct (F	lourly) Sal	ary Sched	ule is:	
							•	rly) instructor
compl	ete four (4) semeste	ers of serv	ice (exclud	ding summ	er and inte	ersession	s).
**O A		4 4	. 4					6.116
								field from an
accred	itea institu	ition will b	e piaced o	n Range ∠	of the Nor	icreait Aaj	unct Sala	ry Schedule.
***2 Con	anlation of	the Profes	scional Do	volonmon	t program	nor Article	10 adds	approximately 10
					the neares			
								rounding to a
								ale adjustment.
4					J. 5. 10 10 1			
	Schedule &							

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 8 2017-2018

Effective July 1, 2017

Compensation for Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

		Step	Step	
	Range	1	2	
10	1	38.81	41.53 *	Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
	2	41.53	44.43 **	Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
	3	42.69	45.68 ***	Noncredit Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
	4	45.68	48.87 ***	Noncredit Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
- *** 3. Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds <u>approximately</u> 10% salary increase. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2017

Board Approved: 06/27/18

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 8 2018-2019

Compensation for Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	
<u>Range</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	
<u>1</u>	40.24	43.07	*Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
<u>2</u>	43.07	46.08	**Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
<u>3</u>	44.27	47.37	*** Noncredit Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
<u>4</u>	47.37	50.69	*** Noncredit Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
- *** 3. Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds approximately 10% salary increase. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2018

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 8 2019-2020

Compensation for Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

		<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	
Ran	<u>ge</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	
1		41.04	43.93	* Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
<u>2</u>		43.93	<u>47.00</u>	** Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
<u>3</u>		<u>45.16</u>	48.32	*** Noncredit Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
<u>4</u>		48.32	51.70	*** Noncredit Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
- *** 3. Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds approximately 10% salary increase. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2019

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS PROPOSED ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 8 2020-21

Compensation for Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

			Range		
	<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
	01	41.84	43.51	46.02	47.69
	<u>02</u>	<u>42.26</u>	43.95	46.48	48.17
	<u>03</u>	<u>42.68</u>	44.39	46.95	48.65
	<u>04</u>	<u>43.10</u>	44.83	<u>47.42</u>	<u>49.14</u>
	<u>05</u>	43.54	<u>45.28</u>	<u>47.89</u>	49.63
	<u>06</u>	43.97	<u>45.73</u>	48.37	50.13
	<u>07</u>	<u>44.41</u>	46.19	<u>48.85</u>	50.63
	<u>08</u>	<u>44.86</u>	46.65	<u>49.34</u>	<u>51.13</u>
	<u>09</u>	<u>45.30</u>	<u>47.12</u>	<u>49.83</u>	<u>51.65</u>
	<u>10</u>	<u>45.76</u>	<u>47.59</u>	50.33	<u>52.16</u>
	<u>11</u>	<u>46.21</u>	<u>48.06</u>	<u>50.84</u>	<u>52.68</u>
	<u>12</u>	<u>46.68</u>	48.54	<u>51.34</u>	<u>53.21</u>
	<u>13</u>	<u>47.14</u>	49.03	<u>51.86</u>	<u>53.74</u>
	<u>14</u>	<u>47.61</u>	49.52	52.38	<u>54.28</u>
	<u>15</u>	<u>48.09</u>	50.01	<u>52.90</u>	<u>54.82</u>
	<u>16</u>	<u>48.57</u>	50.51	53.43	<u>55.37</u>
	<u>17</u>	<u>49.06</u>	<u>51.02</u>	53.96	<u>55.93</u>
	<u>18</u>	<u>49.55</u>	<u>51.53</u>	<u>54.50</u>	<u>56.48</u>
	<u>19</u>	<u>50.04</u>	<u>52.05</u>	<u>55.05</u>	<u>57.05</u>
	<u>20</u>	<u>50.54</u>	<u>52.57</u>	<u>55.60</u>	<u>57.62</u>
*	D 1	NT 12	A 1' (D D /D 1 1	l D	
**	Range 1		Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor		
***	Range 3		Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev		ficle 19
***	Range 2		Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's		1. 10
<u> </u>	Range 4	Noncredit	Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev.	per Artic	<u>le 19</u>

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1. Advancement to each
- ** 2. Completion of the Professional Development program with a bachelor's degree per
- *** 3. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from
- **** 4. Completion of the Professional Development program with a master's degree per

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2020

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 8 2021-22

Compensation for Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

		Ran	<u>ge</u>	
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>01</u>	44.04	<u>45.80</u>	<u>48.44</u>	50.20
<u>02</u>	<u>44.48</u>	<u>46.26</u>	<u>48.93</u>	<u>50.71</u>
<u>03</u>	44.92	46.72	<u>49.42</u>	<u>51.21</u>
<u>04</u>	<u>45.37</u>	<u>47.19</u>	<u>49.91</u>	<u>51.72</u>
<u>05</u>	<u>45.83</u>	<u>47.66</u>	<u>50.41</u>	<u>52.24</u>
<u>06</u>	<u>46.28</u>	<u>48.14</u>	<u>50.91</u>	<u>52.76</u>
<u>07</u>	<u>46.75</u>	<u>48.62</u>	<u>51.42</u>	<u>53.29</u>
<u>80</u>	<u>47.21</u>	<u>49.10</u>	<u>51.94</u>	53.82
<u>09</u>	<u>47.69</u>	<u>49.59</u>	<u>52.46</u>	<u>54.36</u>
<u>10</u>	<u>48.16</u>	50.09	<u>52.98</u>	<u>54.91</u>
<u>11</u>	<u>48.65</u>	<u>50.59</u>	<u>53.51</u>	<u>55.46</u>
<u>12</u>	<u>49.13</u>	<u>51.10</u>	<u>54.04</u>	<u>56.01</u>
<u>13</u>	<u>49.62</u>	<u>51.61</u>	54.59	<u>56.57</u>
<u>14</u>	50.12	52.12	<u>55.13</u>	<u>57.14</u>
15 16	50.62	52.65	<u>55.68</u>	<u>57.71</u>
<u>16</u>	<u>51.13</u>	<u>53.17</u>	56.24	<u>58.28</u>
<u>17</u>	<u>51.64</u>	53.70	<u>56.80</u>	<u>58.87</u>
<u>18</u>	<u>52.15</u>	54.24	57.37	<u>59.46</u>
<u>19</u>	<u>52.68</u>	<u>54.78</u>	<u>57.94</u>	<u>60.05</u>
<u>20</u>	53.20	<u>55.33</u>	58.52	<u>60.65</u>

*	Range 1	Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
**	Range 3	Noncredit Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
***	Range 2	Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
***	Range 4	Noncredit Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- <u>*</u> <u>All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1. Advancement to each</u>
- <u>**</u> <u>2. Completion of the Professional Development program with a bachelor's degree</u>
- *** 3. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from
- 4. Completion of the Professional Development program with a master's degree per

<u>Salary Schedule effective:</u> Board Approved:

9	SANTA CLARIT				TRICT					
		LLEGE OF			\ A D I I	O.T.				
	NONCREDITTHE LEARNING CENTER (TLC) ADJUNCT SALARYSCHEDULE (7)									
	SALA	2015-2								
		2015-2	2016							
Comp	ensation for Nor	ncredit The L	 .earning Ce	enter (TLC)	Adjunct (H	lourly) Facul				
				(,		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,				
		\$41.99	/ Hour							
Salary Sch	edule effective: 0	7/01/15								
Board App	roved: 5/11/201	6								

'	SANTA CL	ARITA (OMMUN	ITY COLL	EGE DIS	TRICT			
		COLLE	GE OF T	HE CANY	ONS				
NONCRED	IT THE LE	ARNING	CENTER	R (TLC) A	DJUNCT	SALARY	SCHEDU	JLE (7)	
			2016-20	17					
		Effect	ive Augus	t 19, 2016					
Compens	sation for N	oncredit T	he Learni	ng Center	(TLC) Adji	unct (Hour	ly) Faculty	<u>/</u>	
	Step	Step							
Range	1	2							
1	41.99	44.93						r's Degree)
2	44.93	48.08		redit TLC	• •			- '	
3	46.19	49.42			•			v. per Artic	
4	49.42	52.88	*** Nonc	redit TLC /	Adjunct M	aster's + F	Prof. Dev.	per Article	19
Mathad	of placeme	nt on the	Noporodit	Adius at /L	Jaurhy) Cal	lam, Cabad	ula ia		
Metriod	or placeme	nt on the	Noncredit	Aujunct (F	iourry) Sar	lary Scried	ule is.		
*1 Adva	ncement to	Sten 2 of	the salary	schedule	requires t	∣ hat an adii	inct (hourl	v) instructo) nr
	olete four (4								/1
33111	loto rour (1	, 00111001		(0,0,0,1	anig carin				
**2. Aca	demic Adju	nct instru	ctors with	an earned	master's	degree in	a relevant	field from	an
	dited institu								
***3. Cor	npletion of t	he Profes	sional De	velopment	program	per Article	19 adds <u>a</u>	approxima	<u>ely</u> 10
salary	increase. S	Salary sca	ales are ro	unded to t	he neares	t cent per	standard ı	rounding	
	ds. Upon w								
differe	ence of over	.5%, the	District ar	nd AFT will	agree to	a one-time	salary sc	ale adjustn	nent.
	1 1 66		0./4.6						
-	nedule effec		9/16						
Board Ap	proved: 5/13	1/2016							

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT THE LEARNING CENTER (TLC) ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE (7) 2017-2018

Effective July 1, 2017

Compensation for Noncredit The Learning Center (TLC) Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

	Step	Step		
Range	1	2		
1	43.45	46.49	*	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
2	46.49	49.75	**	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
3	47.80	51.14	***	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
4	51.14	54.72	***	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
- *** 3. Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds <u>approximately</u> 10% salary increase. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2017

Board Approved: 06/27/18

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT THE LEARNING CENTER (TLC) ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE (7) 2018-2019

Compensation for Noncredit The Learning Center (TLC) Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	
<u>Range</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	
1	<u>45.06</u>	48.22	*Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
<u>2</u>	<u>48.22</u>	<u>51.60</u>	**Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
<u>3</u>	49.57	<u>53.04</u>	*** Noncredit TLC Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
<u>4</u>	53.04	<u>56.75</u>	*** Noncredit TLC Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

*	1.	Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor
		complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
**	2.	Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an
; -		accredited institution will be place on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
***	3.	Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds approximately 10%
; -		methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a
; -		difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment.
3		Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be place on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule. Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds approximately 10 methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2018

Board Approved: 10/14/20

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT THE LEARNING CENTER (TLC) ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE (7) 2019-2020

Compensation for Noncredit The Learning Center (TLC) Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

	<u>Step</u>	<u>Step</u>	
<u>Range</u>	<u>1</u>	<u>2</u>	
<u>1</u>	<u>45.96</u>	49.18	*Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
<u>2</u>	<u>49.18</u>	<u>52.63</u>	**Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
<u>3</u>	<u>50.56</u>	<u>54.10</u>	*** Noncredit TLC Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
<u>4</u>	<u>54.10</u>	57.89	*** Noncredit TLC Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 2 of the Noncredit Adjunct Salary Schedule.
- *** Completion of the Professional Development program per Article 19 adds approximately 10% salary increase. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Upon which time the targeted 3% salary change is modified by the rounding to a difference of over .5%, the District and AFT will agree to a one-time salary scale adjustment.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2019

Board Approved: 10/14/20

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS PROPOSED ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 7 2020-21

Compensation for Noncredit The Learning Center (TLC) Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

		Range		
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>01</u>	46.84	<u>48.71</u>	51.52	53.40
<u>02</u>	<u>47.31</u>	49.20	52.04	<u>53.93</u>
<u>03</u>	<u>47.78</u>	<u>49.69</u>	<u>52.56</u>	<u>54.47</u>
<u>04</u>	<u>48.26</u>	<u>50.19</u>	53.08	<u>55.01</u>
<u>05</u>	<u>48.74</u>	<u>50.69</u>	53.62	<u>55.56</u>
<u>06</u>	49.23	<u>51.20</u>	<u>54.15</u>	<u>56.12</u>
<u>07</u>	<u>49.72</u>	<u>51.71</u>	54.69	<u>56.68</u>
<u>08</u>	50.22	<u>52.23</u>	<u>55.24</u>	<u>57.25</u>
<u>09</u>	50.72	<u>52.75</u>	55.79	<u>57.82</u>
<u>10</u>	51.23	<u>53.28</u>	<u>56.35</u>	<u>58.40</u>
<u>11</u>	<u>51.74</u>	<u>53.81</u>	<u>56.91</u>	<u>58.98</u>
<u>12</u>	<u>52.26</u>	<u>54.35</u>	<u>57.48</u>	<u>59.57</u>
<u>13</u>	<u>52.78</u>	<u>54.89</u>	<u>58.06</u>	60.17
<u>14</u>	<u>53.31</u>	<u>55.44</u>	<u>58.64</u>	60.77
<u>15</u>	<u>53.84</u>	<u>55.99</u>	<u>59.22</u>	<u>61.38</u>
<u>16</u>	<u>54.38</u>	<u>56.55</u>	<u>59.82</u>	<u>61.99</u>
<u>17</u>	<u>54.92</u>	<u>57.12</u>	60.41	<u>62.61</u>
<u>18</u>	<u>55.47</u>	<u>57.69</u>	61.02	<u>63.24</u>
<u>19</u>	<u>56.03</u>	<u>58.27</u>	61.63	<u>63.87</u>
<u>20</u>	<u>56.59</u>	<u>58.85</u>	<u>62.25</u>	<u>64.51</u>
Range 1 Noncredit	TLC Adju	<u>ınct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's D</u>	<u>)egree)</u>	

*	Range 1	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
**	Range 3	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
***	Range 2	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
****	Range 4	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1. Advancement to each
- ** 2. Completion of the Professional Development program with a bachelor's degree per
- *** 3. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from
- **** 4. Completion of the Professional Development program with a master's degree per

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2020

Board Approved: 10/14/20

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 7 2021-22

Compensation for Noncredit The Learning Center (TLC) Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty

		<u>Ran</u>	<u>ge</u>	
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>
<u>01</u>	<u>49.30</u>	<u>51.27</u>	<u>54.23</u>	<u>56.21</u>
02	<u>49.80</u>	<u>51.79</u>	<u>54.78</u>	<u>56.77</u>
<u>03</u>	50.29	<u>52.31</u>	<u>55.32</u>	<u>57.33</u>
<u>04</u>	<u>50.80</u>	<u>52.83</u>	<u>55.88</u>	<u>57.91</u>
<u>05</u>	<u>51.30</u>	<u>53.36</u>	<u>56.44</u>	<u>58.49</u>
<u>06</u>	<u>51.82</u>	53.89	57.00	<u>59.07</u>
<u>07</u>	<u>52.34</u>	54.43	57.57	<u>59.66</u>
<u>80</u>	<u>52.86</u>	<u>54.97</u>	<u>58.15</u>	60.26
<u>09</u>	<u>53.39</u>	<u>55.52</u>	<u>58.73</u>	<u>60.86</u>
<u>10</u>	53.92	<u>56.08</u>	<u>59.31</u>	<u>61.47</u>
11 12	<u>54.46</u>	<u>56.64</u>	<u>59.91</u>	62.09
<u>12</u>	<u>55.01</u>	57.21	60.51	62.71
<u>13</u>	<u>55.56</u>	<u>57.78</u>	<u>61.11</u>	63.33
<u>14</u>	<u>56.11</u>	<u>58.36</u>	<u>61.72</u>	<u>63.97</u>
<u>15</u>	<u>56.67</u>	<u>58.94</u>	<u>62.34</u>	<u>64.61</u>
<u>16</u>	<u>57.24</u>	<u>59.53</u>	<u>62.96</u>	<u>65.25</u>
<u>17</u>	<u>57.81</u>	<u>60.12</u>	<u>63.59</u>	<u>65.91</u>
<u>18</u>	<u>58.39</u>	<u>60.73</u>	64.23	<u>66.56</u>
<u>19</u>	<u>58.97</u>	<u>61.33</u>	<u>64.87</u>	67.23
<u>20</u>	<u>59.56</u>	<u>61.95</u>	65.52	<u>67.90</u>

*	Range 1	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Bachelor's Degree)
**	Range 3	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Bachelor's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19
***	Range 2	Noncredit TLC Adjunct (Base Pay w/Master's Degree)
***	Range 4	Noncredit TLC Adjunct Master's + Prof. Dev. per Article 19

Method of placement on the Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

*	<u>1.</u>	All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1. Advancement to each
**	2.	Completion of the Professional Development program with a bachelor's degree per
***	3.	Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned master's degree in a relevant field from
***	4.	Completion of the Professional Development program with a master's degree per

Salary Schedule effective: Board Approved:

	COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SALARY SCHEDULE (6)										
ADJUNCT NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SALARY SCHEDULE (6)											
	2014-2015										
Academic	& Associa	ate Credit <i>i</i>	Adjunct (F	lourly) No	n-Instru	ctional Rate					
		0.									
	_	Step	Step	Step							
	Range	1	2	3	14	A 1 '	A !! 1	(D D)			
	1	37.32	39.93	41.13				(Base Pay)			
	2	41.05	43.93	45.24				(Base Pay)			
	3	41.05	43.93	45.24				with Doctorate			
	4	45.16	48.32	49.77	****	Associate	e Aajunct v	with Doctorate			
Method of r	lacement o	n the Acad	emic & Ass	sociate Cre	dit Adjun	ct (Hourly) Fa	culty Salar	y Schedule is:			
* 1. All a	adjunct (hou	urly) instruc	tors are init	ially placed	d on Ran	ge 1 / Step 1	of the				
		ınct (Hourly									
			, ,								
2. Adva	ncement to	Step 2 of t	he salary s	chedule re	quires tha	at an adjunct	(hourly)				
		· ·			-	ng summer an		ions).			
3. Advan	cement to S	Step 3 of the	salary sch	edule requ	ires that	an adjunct (h	ourly)				
instr	uctor compl	lete six (6)	semesters	of service a	at Step 2	(excluding su	ımmer and	intersessions).			
** 4. Place	ement on R	ange 2 of th	ne Associat	e Adjunct (Hourly) S	Salary Schedu	ıle requires	:			
				-		specified in A	-				
OR											
The	completion of	of twelve (12	2) units of to	eaching me	ethodolog	y and/or cour	sework in t	he			
	-	•	•			by the CIO.					
				-		-					
*** 5. Aca	demic Adju	nct instructo	ors with an	earned do	ctorate (F	h.D. or Ed.D.) in a releva	ant			
						3 of the Acad					
	rly) Salary S										
**** 6. Ass	sociate Adju	ınct instruct	tors with an	earned do	ctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D	.) in a relev	/ant			
						4 of the Asso					
	rly) Salary S										
·											

		С	OLLEGE (OF THE	CANYC	NS			
	ADJUN						JLE (6)		
	ADJUNCT NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SALARY SCHEDULE (6) 2015-2016								
Aca	demic & As	sociate C	redit Adjun	ct (Hourl	/) Non-Ir	nstructional l	Rate		
		Step	Step	Step					
	Range	1	2	3			A 11	(5 5)	
	1	39.19	41.93	43.19				(Base Pay)	
	2	43.11	46.13	47.51	**			(Base Pay)	
	3	43.11	46.13	47.51	***			with Doctor	
	4	47.42	50.74	52.26	****	Associate	e Aajunct v	with Doctor	ate
Method of	placement c	n the Acad	emic & Ass	ociate Cre	dit Adjund	ct (Hourly) Fac	culty Salary	Schedule is	:
					on Rang	je 1 / Step 1 d	of the		
Ac	ademic Adju	nct (Hourly) Salary Scr	iedule.					
2 /4	(anaomont to	Stop 2 of	the colony of	shodulo rod	uiroo tha	t on adjunct (hourly)		
			-			it an adjunct (200	
IIIS	tructor comp	ete loui (4)	semesiers	oi service	excluding	g summer and	ı intersessio	ons).	
3 Adva	ncement to 9	Sten 3 of the	e salary sch	edule regu	ires that s	an adjunct (ho	ourly)		
						(excluding su		ntersessions	١
		oto oix (o)		71 001 VIOO C	it Otop 2	(Oxorading Sai		Interocociono	<i>,</i> .
**4. Pla	cement on R	ange 2 of t	he Associate	e Adiunct (L Hourly) S	alary Schedul	le requires:		
						pecified in Art			
OR					J	,			
The	completion of	of twelve (1	2) units of te	aching me	thodoloay	y and/or cours	ework in th	ie	
	a of assignme	-	•						
				•					
*** 5. Ac	ademic Adju	nct instruct	ors with an	earned doo	torate (P	h.D. or Ed.D.)	in a releva	nt	
field	from an acc	redited inst	itution will b	e placed o	n Range	3 of the Acad	emic Adjun	ct	
(Ho	urly) Salary S	Schedule.							
**** 6. A	ssociate Adi	ınct instruc	tors with an	earned do	ctorate (F	Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relev	ant	
						4 of the Asso	-		
	urly) Salary S			F	99				
(.10	,,, = 5.5.3								
	edule effec	ti 07/04	/2015						
C - I - C									

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SALARY SCHEDULE (6) 2017-2018

Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Non-Instructional Rate

		Step	Step	Step		
Ran	ge	1	2	3		
1		40.55	43.39	44.69	*	Academic Adjunct (Base Pay)
2		44.61	47.74	49.16	**	Associate Adjunct (Base Pay)
3		44.61	47.74	49.16	***	Academic Adjunct with Doctorate
4		49.07	52.51	54.08	****	Associate Adjunct with Doctorate

Method of placement on the Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty Salary Schedule is:

- All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Range 1 / Step 1 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
 - Advancement to Step 2 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly)
 instructor complete four (4) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
 - 3. Advancement to Step 3 of the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete six (6) semesters of service at Step 2 (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 4. Placement on Range 2 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires: The completion of the Professional Development program specified in Article 19 A. OR

The completion of twelve (12) units of teaching methodology and/or coursework in the area of assignment. The coursework must be pre-approved by the CIO.

- *** 5. Academic Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 3 of the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- **** 6. Associate Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D. or Ed.D.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range 4 of the Associate Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/2017

Board Approved: 06/27/2018

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 6 2020-21

Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Non-Instructional Rate

	<u>Range</u>								
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>					
<u>01</u>	43.71	<u>45.46</u>	48.08	49.83					
<u>02</u>	<u>44.15</u>	45.91	48.56	50.33					
<u>03</u>	44.59	46.37	49.05	50.83					
<u>04</u>	45.03	46.84	49.54	<u>51.34</u>					
<u>05</u>	<u>45.48</u>	47.30	50.03	<u>51.85</u>					
<u>06</u>	45.94	47.78	50.53	52.37					
<u>07</u>	46.40	48.25	51.04	52.89					
<u>08</u>	46.86	48.74	<u>51.55</u>	53.42					
<u>09</u>	47.33	49.22	52.06	53.96					
<u>10</u>	47.80	49.72	52.59	54.50					
<u>11</u>	48.28	50.21	<u>53.11</u>	<u>55.04</u>					
<u>12</u>	48.77	50.72	53.64	<u>55.59</u>					
<u>13</u>	49.25	51.22	<u>54.18</u>	<u>56.15</u>					
<u>14</u>	<u>49.75</u>	51.74	54.72	<u>56.71</u>					
15	50.24	52.25	55.27	<u>57.28</u>					
16 17	50.75	52.78	55.82	<u>57.85</u>					
<u>17</u>	<u>51.25</u>	53.30	<u>56.38</u>	<u>58.43</u>					
<u>18</u>	<u>51.77</u>	<u>53.84</u>	<u>56.94</u>	<u>59.01</u>					
<u>19</u>	<u>52.28</u>	<u>54.37</u>	<u>57.51</u>	<u>59.60</u>					
<u>20</u>	52.81	54.92	58.09	60.20					
Range 1 Credi	t & Enhanc	ed Noncre	dit Adiunct	(Base Pav)					

*	Range 1	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay)
**	Range 2	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct + CFT
* - ** ***	Range 3	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate
***	Range 4	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate + CFT

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1 of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule. Advancement to each subsequent Step after initial placement on the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor complete two (2) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- <u>Placement on Range B of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A.</u>
- *** 3. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range C of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 4. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution and the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A will be placed on Range D of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS ADJUNCT SALARY SCHEDULE 6 2021-22

Academic & Associate Credit Adjunct (Hourly) Non-Instructional Rate

	<u>Range</u>					
<u>Step</u>	<u>A</u>	<u>B</u>	<u>C</u>	<u>D</u>		
<u>01</u>	46.01	<u>47.85</u>	50.61	52.45		
<u>02</u>	46.47	48.32	<u>51.11</u>	52.98		
<u>03</u>	46.94	48.81	<u>51.63</u>	<u>53.50</u>		
<u>04</u>	<u>47.40</u>	49.30	<u>52.15</u>	54.04		
<u>05</u>	47.87	49.79	52.66	<u>54.58</u>		
<u>06</u>	<u>48.36</u>	50.29	<u>53.19</u>	<u>55.12</u>		
<u>07</u>	<u>48.84</u>	50.79	53.72	<u>55.67</u>		
<u>08</u>	49.32	<u>51.30</u>	54.26	56.23		
<u>09</u>	49.82	<u>51.81</u>	54.80	56.80		
<u>10</u>	50.31	<u>52.34</u>	<u>55.36</u>	<u>57.37</u>		
<u>11</u>	50.82	52.85	<u>55.90</u>	57.94		
<u>12</u>	51.34	53.39	<u>56.46</u>	<u>58.51</u>		
<u>13</u>	<u>51.84</u>	<u>53.91</u>	57.03	<u>59.10</u>		
<u>14</u>	52.37	<u>54.46</u>	<u>57.60</u>	<u>59.69</u>		
<u>15</u>	<u>52.88</u>	<u>55.00</u>	<u>58.18</u>	60.29		
<u>16</u>	<u>53.42</u>	<u>55.56</u>	<u>58.76</u>	60.89		
<u>17</u>	<u>53.95</u>	<u>56.10</u>	<u>59.35</u>	61.50		
<u>18</u>	<u>54.49</u>	<u>56.67</u>	<u>59.94</u>	62.11		
<u>19</u>	<u>55.03</u>	57.23	60.54	62.73		
<u>20</u>	55.59	<u>57.81</u>	<u>61.15</u>	63.37		

*	Range 1	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct (Base Pay)
**	Range 2	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct + CFT
***	Range 3	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate
***	Range 4	Credit & Enhanced Noncredit Adjunct with Doctorate + CFT

Method of placement on the Academic Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule is:

- * 1. All adjunct (hourly) instructors are initially placed on Step 1 of the Adjunct (Hourly)

 Salary Schedule. Advancement to each subsequent Step after initial placement on

 the salary schedule requires that an adjunct (hourly) instructor

 complete two (2) semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions).
- ** 2. Placement on Range B of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule requires the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A.
- Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution will be placed on Range C of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.
- 4. Adjunct instructors with an earned doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.) in a relevant field from an accredited institution and the completion of a skilled teacher program (CFT) specified in Article 19 A will be placed on Range D of the Adjunct (Hourly) Salary Schedule.

Salary Schedule effective:

SAI	NTA CLARIT	TA COMMU	NITYCOLI	FGF DIS	TRICT	
O 7		LLEGE OF				
NONCREDIT					RYSCHE	DI II E (5)
NONOREDI	IADOUNOT	2014-2			(TOOTIL	
		2014-2	010			
Non	credit Adjunc	et (Hourly) No	n-Instructio	nal Rate		
<u>.1101.</u>	la constant	<u> </u>	THOU GOLLO	<u> </u>		
		\$23.22/	Hour			
		7-0:-27				
Salary Scheo						

	SANTA CLARITA				TRICT		
NONODE		LEGE OF T)VOOLIE		
NONCRE	DITADJUNCTN	2015-20		ALSALAF	RYSCHEL	JULE (5)	
		2013-20	10				
	lanaradit Adiunat	(Hourby) Non	Inatruotia	nal Data			
<u>l</u>	Noncredit Adjunct (i iourry) INOI	1-11 15ti UCUO	nai Nate			
		\$24.38 / 1	Hour				
	edule effective: 07	/01/15					
Roard App	proved: 5/11/2016						

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS NONCREDIT ADJUNCT NON-INSTRUCTIONAL SALARY SCHEDULE (5) 2017-2018

Noncredit Adjunct (Hourly) Non-Instructional Rate

\$ 25.23 / Hour

Salary Schedule effective: 07/01/17 Board Approved: 06/27/2018

SANTA CI AR	RITA COMMUNITY COLLE	FGF DISTRICT
	OLLEGE OF THE CANYO	
	ON FOR SCHEDULED O	
AD	JUNCT (HOURLY) FACU	LTY
	SALARY SCHEDULE (F	,
	2016-2017	
	Hourly Rate: \$20.00	
	1.13απγ παιο. ψ20.00	

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS COMPENSATION FOR SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS ADJUNCT (HOURLY) FACULTY SALARY SCHEDULE (F) 2017-2018 Effective August 21, 2017

Hourly Rate: \$40.00

Salary schedule effective 08/21/2017 Board Approved: 06/27/18

APPENDIX B: CLASSROOM EVALUATION REPORTS

COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS Visitation and Evaluation Report

Instructor	Visitation	Date_		
Course Number, Section Number, and Tit	le			
Official Class Duration (as per Schedule of	of Classes) _			
Evaluator Arrival Time				
Evaluator Departure Time				
· Lecture · Lab · Activity				
Total Number of Students in Attendance _ Instructional Techniques Being Used				
(Lecture, discussion, audio/visual, handou	ıt, laboratory	, group	activi	ity, etc.)
Name of Evaluator				
Directions: Circle the appropriate number should detail specific items in support include suggestions for improvement. materials and assessment instruments.	of your nun	nerical a	assigni	nent and may
A. Knowledge of Subject Matter 1	2 3	4	5	N/A
 5 – Instructor demonstrates a command 3 – Instructor demonstrates an understa 1 – Instructor does not appear to have a taught. 	anding of the	e materi	ial taug	_
Comments:				

В.	Clear Les	sson Objectives	1	2	3	4	5	N/A		
	objec 3 – Instru 1 – Instru	actor demonstrate tives (examples: actor demonstrate actor demonstrate oparent.	syllab es prep	us, on aratio	line, P n for c	owerP	oint, o	n board, ojectives	, verb s appa	al) arent.
Co	omments:									
	-									
C.	Clear Wr	itten and Oral Co	ommui	nicatio	ons	1 2	3	4	5	N/A
	mann 3 – Verba 1 – Poor	els clear, enthusia erisms. Written al and written ma quality in spoken ropriate or inacc	materi terials or wr	als cle of ave itten c	ear, accerage of	curate quality	and fit	ting to s	subjec	et.
Co	omments: _									
	-									
D.	Teaching	Methods			1	2	3	4	5	N/A
	studenteachi 3 – Uses 1 – Uses	teaching method nt learning styles ing methods.) limited but adequate teaching method ing styles.	s. (Eva	luator aching	may r g meth	eview od(s) f	syllabion the	us for ev subject.	viden	ce of
Co	omments:									
	<u>-</u>									

Е.	Organization of Presentation and Activities 1 2 3 4 5 N/A 5 – Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patterns.
	 3 – Discernible organizational pattern. 1 – Apparent lack of organization.
Cc	omments:
F.	Good Time Management 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
	 5 – Time is managed well, and instructor began and/or ended class in a timely manner. 3 – Some parts of lesson go beyond time allocated or necessary and/or class began/ended inefficiently. 1 – No apparent awareness of time and poor use of time.
Cc	omments:
G.	Student Assessment Methods 1 2 3 4 5 N/A (Suggestion: Request syllabus and, if appropriate, a quiz or test before the classroom visitation.)
3 -	 Assessments are of ample and variety so as to recognize differing learning styles and to determine mastery of student learning outcomes. Some methods of assessment are adequate to assess most student learning styles and student learning outcomes. Assessments are insufficient to accurately measure differing student learning styles and student learning outcomes.
Co	omments:

H. Overall Assessment of Instructor's Classroom Performance (Must be the true mathematical average of the above ratings A-G):					
Additional Comments by Evaluator:					
Signature of Evaluator:					
Signature of Evaluatee:	_Date:				
Signature of Department Chair:	_Date:				
Signature of Instructional Dean:	_Date:				

Note: Evaluatee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement. It is merely an acknowledgment that the complete report has been read. Evaluatee may submit a written response within ten calendar days of receipt of this evaluation report. The written statement will be filed with this classroom visitation report.

APPENDIX B: ONLINE VISITATION AND EVALUATION REPORT

COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS Online Visitation and Evaluation Report

Instructor Visitation Date						
Course Number, Section Number, an	d Title					
The number of observations should	d be approx	ximato	ely 50	minut	es in d	uration.
Instructional Techniques Being Used						
(Video lectures, other lecture materia	ls, discussion	on boa	ırds, sn	nall gro	oup act	tivities)
Name of Evaluator(Circle one: Content Evaluator, Dista	ınce Learnii	ng Eva	aluator	, Both))	
Name of Evaluator(Circle one: Content Evaluator, Dista	ınce Learnii	ng Eva	aluator	, Both))	
Directions: Circle the appropriate numbers should detail specific items in supinclude suggestions for improvemmaterials and assessment instruments.	port of you ent. Evalua	r num	erical	assign	ment a	nd may
Content – Items A through C						
A. Knowledge of Subject Matter	1	2	3	4	5	N/A
 5 – Instructor demonstrates a comm 3 – Instructor demonstrates an under the instructor does not appear to hat taught. 	erstanding o	of the 1	materia	al taug		aterial
Comments:						

В. С	Clear Com	munication	1	2	3	4	5	N/A	
3 -	and profeedbac detailed - Commu contain general - Poor qu	vides well-de k are accurated. I. nication in or some errors or	fined lese, easy to ne or more or lack of	son ole under re med speci	ojectiv rstand lia use ficity. or mo	es. Instant substant	truction officient average objection	ns, intently spe ge qualitives ar	eific and may re provided in uage vague,
Con	nments:								
5 - 3 - 1 -	May reflect - Assessm styles and - Some m learning - Assessm	ssessment Me ct input from nents are of su nd to determine thods of asso g styles and st nents address ely measure s	both evantificient one maste essment and only a significant learning to the control of the contr	luator quanti ry of s are ad arning ngle lo	ty and studen equate outco	variety t learni e to asso mes. g style	nators in adding out	dress di comes. ariety o	d) Iffering learning f student
	_								
Dist	ance Lea	rning – Item	s D thro	ugh C	7				
	Ceaching No.	Methods ect input from	both eva			3 vo eval		5 require	N/A d)
		ning method(s arning styles,				-		sive of	diversity of

	learning	aching method styles or that accessible to a	do not sup	port tl	-				•		
Cor	nments:										
E.]	Regular	and Effective	Contact	1	2	3	4	5	N	/A	
3	descritechi in a 3 – Limi descri Stud be of 1 – Regu descri	llar and effection ribed in the coniques. Studen timely way. ted but adequatibed in the contents generally eccasional deladar and effection instructor for instructor for the content of the content in t	urse outling ts receive attended instructurse outling receive in the sys. Ve instructurse outling the sys.	ne of r instruct ne of r astruct tor-stu	ecord ctor fee ident a ecord or feed ident a ecord i	is demedbacked studies incolling inc	dent-st in a tin dent-st dent-st	ted throughted tudent of the dinto nely was tudent of the strated in the strategy and the strategy and the strategy are strategy as the	ough rand a contact the coy, but	nultip ssignr t as ourse. there	ments may
Cor	nments:										
F. (Organiza	ation and Preso	entation of	f Activ	vities	1	2	3	4	5	N/A
3	prop 3 – Disce initia 1 – Appa	se elements arely and dates ernible organized ly unclear. The rent lack of or iple broken lin	are accura zation of co here may l ganization	nte for ourse o oe som n, cour	the tentled elementled the mind ese elen	rm. nts, the or erro	ough so	ome iter	ms ma dates.	y be	
Cor	nments:										
											<u></u>

3 – Uses limited but adequate teaching method(s) for the subject; some components

are not accessible to all students.

units and release of materials and as 3 – Course units, materials, and assignm reasonable pace, but there may be so 1 – Course materials and assignments ar that does not give students sufficient	nents, are generally presented at a ome inconsistencies. The presented late or in an erratic manner
Comments:	
H. Overall Assessment of Instructor's Class (Must be the true mathematical average	
Additional Comments by Evaluator:	
Signature of Evaluator:*if co-evaluator is needed	Date:
Signature of Evaluatee:	Date:
Signature of Department Chair:	Date:
Signature of Instructional Dean:	Date:

1

5 – Course materials are presented at an appropriate pace, including timing of

2

3 4

5

N/A

G. Course Pacing

acknowledgment that the complete report has been read. Evaluatee may submit a written response within ten calendar days of receipt of this evaluation report. The

Note: Evaluatee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement. It is merely an

written statement will be filed with this classroom visitation report.

APPENDIX B: ONLINELIVE CLASSROOM EVALUATION REPORT

COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS Visitation and Evaluation Report

Instructor:		Visitation	Date:						
Course Number, Sect	tion Number, and Title	e:							
Official Class Duration	on (as per Schedule of	Classes):							
Evaluator Arrival Tir	me:				_				
Evaluator Departure	Time:				_				
[] Lecture [] Lab [] Activity								
Total Number of Stud	dents in Attendance:								
Instructional Techniq	ues Being Used:								
discussion, audio/vist	ual, handout, laborator	ry, group act	ivity, etc	:.)				(Lecture,	
Name of Evaluator:								_	
support of your nume	appropriate number for ical assignment and rials and assessment in	may include							<u> </u>
. Knowledge of Subject	et Matter	1	2	3	4	5	N/A		
3 – Instructor demons 1 – Instructor does no	strates a command of strates an understanding of appear to have an ac	ng of the ma lequate back	terial tau ground f	for the m					
Comments:									
									_
Clear Synchronous L	esson Objectives	1	2	3	4	5	N/A		
PowerPoint, screen sl 3 – Instructor demons	strates thorough prepa hare, video, shared do strates preparation for strates no evidence of	cuments).	objective	es appar	ent.	·	,	ples: verbal,	
									_

<u>C.</u>	Clear Written and Oral Communications 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
	5 – Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent and appropriate vocabulary and mannerisms. Written materials are clear, accurate and fitting to subject. Interacts with students by utilizing diverse features of the synchronous platform, e.g., audio, video, chat, screen share, etc. 3 – Verbal and written materials of average quality. Interacts with students by utilizing features of the synchronous platform. 1 – Poor quality in spoken or written communication, lacks enthusiasm; inappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Interacts with students with a single feature of the synchronous platform.
	Comments:
<u>D.</u>	Synchronous Instructional Methods 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
	5 – Uses multiple instructional method(s) appropriate for the subject and to the diversity of students. Facilitates student-to-student interaction. For example, using diverse platform features such as chats, polls, break-out rooms, or shared documents. (Evaluator may review syllabus for evidence of teaching methods.) 3 – Uses a single but adequate teaching method(s) for the subject to facilitate student-to-student interaction. For example, using limited platform features such as chats, polls, break-out rooms, or shared documents. 1 – Does not facilitate student-to-student interaction. Comments:
<u>E.</u>	Organization and Presentation of Activities 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
	5 – Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patterns. Course elements are clearly organized and easy to locate. All links function properly and dates are accurate for the term. Instructor provides clear instructions to students about a given activity. For example, if sending students to a break-out room, directions are clear and not left to chance. 3 – Discernible organizational pattern. Course elements are organized, though some items may be initially unclear. There may be some minor errors in links or dates. Instructor provides instructions to students about a given activity. 1 – Evident lack of organization. Course elements are difficult to locate or contain multiple broken links or incorrect dates. Instructor does not provide instructions to students for a given activity.
	Comments:
<u>F.</u>	Good Time Management 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
	5 – Time is managed well, and instructor began and/or ended class in a timely manner. Course materials are

3 – Some parts of lesson go beyond time allocated or necessary and/or class began/ended inefficiently. Course

presented at an appropriate pace, including timing of units and release of materials and assignments.

1	nconsistencies. 1 – No apparent awareness of time and poor use of time. Course materials and assignments are presented late or in an erratic manner that does not give students sufficient time to meet deadlines.
<u>(</u>	Comments:
-	
- G. (Clear LMS Functionality 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
<u>5</u> <u>f</u> <u>3</u>	5 – Course shell is structured, easy to navigate, and sufficiently specific and detailed. For example, all links function, dates are accurate, and class materials are organized. 8 – Course shell is of average quality and may contain some errors or lack of specificity. For example, minor error n links or dates are present. Class materials are not organized. 1 – Course shell is of poor quality. For example, language is unclear or contains significant errors. Contains
<u>r</u>	multiple broken links and/or incorrect dates. Class materials are not discernable.
<u>(</u>	Comments:
-	
H. I	Regular and Substantive Contact 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
<u>r</u> <u>a</u> <u>1</u> <u>c</u> <u>f</u> <u>1</u>	Execute and substantive instructor-student and student-student contact as described in the course outline of record is demonstrated through multiple techniques. Students receive instructor feedback on questions and assignments in a timely way. Interacts with students during the synchronous session by utilizing a variety of platform features such as videos, discussions, chats, breakout rooms, surveys, etc. B.—Limited but adequate instructor-student and student-student contact as described in the course outline of record is incorporated into the course. Students generally receive instructor feedback in a timely way, but there may be occasional delays. Interacts with students during the synchronous session by utilizing a limited variety of platform features such as videos, discussions, chats, breakout rooms, surveys, etc. I.—Regular and substantive instructor-student and student-student contact as described in the course outline of record is not demonstrated in the course and/or instructor feedback is not provided in a timely way. Interacts with students during the synchronous session by utilizing a single platform feature.
<u>(</u>	Comments:
-	
[. S	Student Assessment Methods 1 2 3 4 5 N/A
<u>C</u>	5 – Assessments are of sufficient quantity and variety to address differing learning styles and to determine mastery of student learning outcomes. 8 – Some methods of assessment are adequate to assess a variety of student learning styles and student learning

units, materials, and assignments, are generally presented at a reasonable pace, but there may be some

1 – Assessments address only a single learning style and are insufficient to accurately measure student learning

outcomes

outcomes

Comments:		
J. Overall Assessment of Instructor's Synchronous	S Instructional Performance	
(Must be the true mathematical average of the al	bove ratings A-I):	
Additional Comments by Evaluator(s):		
Additional Comments by Evaluator(s).		
Signature of Evaluator:	Date:	
Signature of Evaluatee:	Date:	
Signature of Department Chair:	Date:	
		
Signature of Instructional Dean:	Data	
Signature of instructional Dean:	Date:	

Note: Evaluatee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement. It is merely an acknowledgment that the complete report has been read. Evaluatee may submit a written response within ten calendar days of receipt of this evaluation report. The written statement will be filed with this classroom visitation report.

APPENDIX C: BOARD POLICY 4030: ACADEMIC FREEDOM

BP 4030 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Reference: Education Code section 76120; Title 5 section 51023; Accreditation Standard II.A.7

A. GENERAL PRINCIPLES ON ACADEMIC FREEDOM

- 1. Freedom of speech is a right granted to all citizens by the First Amendment of the United States Constitution; it is vital to American standards of fairness and intelligent debate, and therefore it extends to the classroom environment for teachers and students.
- 2. A mature, democratic society functions best when its citizens are permitted and able to exercise their right to discuss, debate, disagree, challenge and engage in dialogue on all topics relating to the welfare of individuals and the larger community.
- 3. An institution of higher education in such a society is expected to enable its faculty, students and staff to comprehend and value the freedoms and responsibilities inherent in its national culture.
- 4. Only an academic environment that promotes an open and free exchange of ideas can properly develop the cognitive skills of critical inquiry which promote individual success and societal progress.
- 5. The College, as an institution of higher education, has an obligation to the community to promote the thoughtful introduction of a full gamut of ideas for discussion. This is facilitated by:
 - a. Establishing a policy promoting the principle of academic freedom and encouraging faculty and students to exercise this practice by developing and accepting opportunities for critical thinking and personal growth.
 - b. Ensuring that the policy of academic freedom successfully guarantees mutual respect by all participants in the educational environment, including the protection from the threat of political or personal attack. Such guarantees include the full scope of professional faculty obligations relative to assigning textbooks, presenting student learning activities, evaluating student performance or achievement and participating in the academic life of the community.

B. ACADEMIC FREEDOM AND THE FACULTY

- 1. Academic freedom in the course of instruction means that faculty members teaching in the District have the prerogative to present and explore all issues relevant to their disciplines which contribute to the education of students regarding the substance of each course's content and the student learning outcomes.
- 2. Quality teaching is understood to involve intellectual honesty and academic integrity in the presentation of subjects assigned. Such professional decorum requires the presentation of differing perspectives and interpretations with balanced intellectual rigor.
- 3. Faculty members are expected to maintain their own scholastic currency in their academic disciplines, and their capabilities as instructors within those disciplines.
- 4. It is recognized by the District and faculty members that the faculty members are also private citizens, with all attendant rights and responsibilities as private citizens.
 - a. However, when a member of the faculty speaks or acts in his or her capacity as a

- Private Citizen, it needs to be made clear to the audience that the faculty member is speaking as a private citizen.
- b. It should be clear that any positions taken by faculty members speaking as private citizens are not to be considered as official District policy or positions.
- c. This provision is not intended to limit the right of a faculty member to disagree publicly or privately with District policy, and to participate in peaceable debate on any subject of interest to academic community or the larger issues of society.
- 5. As members of a profession that relies on academic freedom, all faculty members have an obligation to exemplify the highest standards of professional conduct in this regard and to promote an understanding of this principle to their colleagues, to students, and the community at large.

C. ACADEMIC FREEDOM AND STUDENTS

- 1. By accepting an academic course of study within the College system, students accept the principle that they will study in an environment that is designed to present the fullest range of academic insight in the subjects they are enrolled in, including contemporary and historical perspectives, and open, thoughtful examination of differing points of view in pursuit of knowledge within general and specific fields of study.
- 2. Academic freedom allows students to take reasoned exception to the concepts and conclusions presented in any course of study. Students are, however, responsible for learning the content of any course in which they are enrolled, and can expect to be tested on their knowledge of such information.

D. DISTRICT RESPONSIBILITIES AND SUPPORT

- 1. The District is committed to the full support of the principle of academic freedom within all its activities.
- 2. The District supports the freedom of all faculty to inquire, to teach controversial content, to model and encourage critical thinking, and to present all viewpoints within each discipline.
- 3. The District supports the freedom of all students to inquire, to have access to the full range of information available, to explore difficult and controversial material, to develop and practice critical thinking skills, and to operate in a classroom climate free of intimidation and conducive to the free exchange of ideas is fully encouraged and expected.
- 4. Under the provisions of the California Education Code, the faculty have the right and the professional responsibility to assign grades. The District recognizes its obligation to ensure that faculty members will be allowed to exercise these responsibilities free from political influence, intimidation, or threat of lawsuit.

E. ROLE OF ACADEMIC SENATE

1. The Academic Senate shall establish a Committee on Academic Freedom to provide clarification and advice on matters relating to academic freedom.

See Administrative Procedure AP 4030 Approved 02/12/14

AP 4030 ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Reference: Education Code section 76120; Title 5 section 51023; Accreditation Standard II.A.7

Any college committee, District official, faculty member, student, or community member may ask the Senate to convene the Academic Freedom Committee to provide an interpretation, clarification, or opinion on an issue of Academic Freedom.

A. ESTABLISHMENT OF COMMITTEE ON ACADEMIC FREEDOM

Once the Senate receives a request, it will convene an ad hoc committee on Academic Freedom. If several requests address the same or similar issues, the Senate reserves the right to have the committee combine all similar requests and issues into one unified interpretation or opinion.

B. COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

- 1. The committee shall consist of:
 - a. At least three faculty appointed by the Senate, one of whom will be designated as Chair:
 - b. A student appointed by the Associated Student Government;
 - c. An Educational Administrator appointed by the Chancellor; and
 - d. The Senate may also choose to appoint individuals with specialize training or expertise to serve as ex officio (non-voting advisors).
 - e. As far as is possible, the Senate will strive to ensure that the faculty representatives include full time and adjunct faculty.
- 2. When there is a question involving a particular academic discipline, at least one faculty member will be from the same or a closely related discipline, and at least one faculty member will be from a different discipline.
- 3. No Committee member shall have an immediate interest in the issue(s) being discussed.

C. COMMITTEE OPERATION

- 1. As much as possible, the committee shall operate in an open, collegial manner. However, the committee will have the right to establish guidelines to govern committee meetings and operations.
- 2. The committee will work with Human Resources, and other appropriate departments, to ensure that privacy, FERPA, and other related rights are respected for all parties.

D. COMMITTEE REPORT

- 1. The committee will provide an initial report with its interpretations, clarifications, opinions, findings, and/or recommendations to the full Senate, as well as the parties requesting the report, subject to any restrictions required by FERPA and other privacy rules and regulations.
- 2. The report is conditional until it is accepted by the full Senate. The Senate may also ask the committee to review portions of the report to provide for additional clarification.
- 3. In addition, the Committee will provide a summary of its operating guidelines, with suggestions for future committees.

E. APPLICABILITY OF THE REPORT

Interpretations and opinions of this Committee are non-binding on the parties involved. However, it is to be understood by all parties that the final report is the studied interpretation, opinion, recommendations and findings of the Academic Senate. As such it should be given due weight and consideration by the parties requesting the report.

F. WHO MAY REQUEST AN ACADEMIC FREEDOM REPORT

Any individual making a request must specify whether the request is being made as an individual, or as an authorized representative of a committee or other group.

Revised 02/12/14

APPENDIX D: PROFESSIONALISM REPORT

Part-time faculty at College of the Canyons are professionals who are respectful of students and college staff and handle responsibilities in a timely manner. The following report assesses the evaluatee's professionalism and execution of responsibilities during the time period specified.

This report can be requested by the member, the member's department chair, or the member's division dean during any semester or term, irrespective of the member's comprehensive evaluation. It can be completed by the member's department chair or division dean. If Appendix D is completed during a regular evaluation cycle, the member should be notified via e-mail by the division dean ten (10) days in advance of the final review conference. The Professionalism Report should be submitted to the member within twenty-eight (28) calendar days from the observation date (when conducted during a regular evaluation cycle). It will become part of the member's District personnel file.

For this section of the Professionalism Report, whenever an evaluator records a need for improvement score (1, 2 or 3), the evaluator is to provide both supporting evidence and suggested remedies for improvement.

Eval	luation	Stand	lard:
_ , u	uuuloii	Starra	uu u.

- 5 Always complies
- 4 Often complies
- 3 Usually complies
- 2 Occasionally complies
- 1 Seldom complies

N/O – Not observed

A. Professionalism

and with di	with clarity, promptly scretion when working gues, staff and students.	1	2	3	4	5	N/O
Comments:							

2.	-	propriate division, 1 t and FERPA guidelines	2 s.	3	4	5	N/C)	
C	omments:								<u> </u>
3.		he proper use of quipment and supplies.	1	2	3	4	5	N/O	_
С	omments:								<u> </u>
B. R	esponsibiliti	es							
1	manner suc attendance absence for	clear records and submit documentation in a time ch as final grades, positi roster where applicable rms, field trip request forer form, etc.	ly ve	1	2	3	4	5	N/O
C	omments:								<u>—</u>
2.	15 000 0 0 0 0 1 0 1	e to students and ontractual office	1	2	3	4	5	N/O	_
C	omments:								_

Additional Comments by Division Dean/De	epartment Chair:	
Signature of Evaluatee:	Date:	
Signature of Department Chair:	Date:	
Signature of Instructional Dean:	Date:	
Note: Evaluatee's signature does not nece acknowledgment that the complete repe a written response within ten calendar of the written statement will be filed with	ort has been read. Evaluatee may subdays of receipt of this evaluation repo	mi
	1	

APPENDIX E: VISITATION AND EVALUATION REPORT FOR NON-INSTRUCTIONAL FACULTY

COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS Visitation and Evaluation Report

Non-Instructional Faculty		Visitation Date						
Work Setting/Position								
Evaluator Arrival Time		Evaluato	or Depai	ture Ti	me			
Name of Evaluator								
Directions: Circle the appropriate comments to detail specific ite include suggestions for improvematerials and assessment instructions.	ems in suppo vement. Eva	ort of yo luation	our num should	erical a	assigni	ment and		
A. Knowledge of Subject Matter	1	2	3	4	5	N/A		
 5 – Demonstrates a command resources, and college poli 3 – Demonstrates an understant 1 – Demonstrates a lack of understant 	icies/proced iding of the	ures. materia	l for the	e assign	ment.			
Comments:								
B. Clear Objectives	1	2	3	4	5	N/A		
 5 – Demonstrates thorough pres 3 – Demonstrates preparation in 1 – Demonstrates lack of preparation readily apparent. Comments:	for the assig	nment;	some o	bjectiv	es are	apparent.		

5 – Models clearmannerisms3 – Verbal com1 – Poor quality	r, enthusiastic, s. Written mater munication and in spoken or w	excellent rials clear, l/or written rritten con	and and a second and a second and a second a sec	urate a terials	nd fitt of ave	ing to terage q	the pos uality.	sition.
Comments:								
Techniques			1	2	3	4	5	N/A
goals and is 3 – Uses limited 1 – Uses technic	sensitive to the d but adequate t ques and/or me	e diversity echniques thods that	of vos and	arious /or me inadeq	studenthods	nt learr for the	ning st positi	yles. on.
Organization of	f Presentation/A	Activities	1	2	3	4	5	N/A
3 – Discernible	organizational nal pattern is no	pattern. ot clearly o	disce	ernible				
Time Managem	nent		1	2	3	4	5	N/A
3 – Some tasks necessary.	or responsibilit							
	 5 – Models clear mannerisms 3 – Verbal com 1 – Poor quality inappropria Comments: Techniques 5 – Uses techniques goals and is 3 – Uses limited 1 – Uses techniques Comments: Organization of 5 – Clearly orga 3 – Discernible 1 – Organization Comments: Time Managem 5 – Time is managem 5 – Time is managem 5 – Time is managem 5 – Several or the necessary 1 – Several or the necessary 	5 - Models clear, enthusiastic, mannerisms. Written mater 3 - Verbal communication and 1 - Poor quality in spoken or winappropriate or inaccurate Comments: Techniques 5 - Uses techniques and/or met goals and is sensitive to the 3 - Uses limited but adequate t1 - Uses techniques and/or me student learning styles and Comments: Organization of Presentation/A 5 - Clearly organized and easy 3 - Discernible organizational 1 - Organizational pattern is not Comments: Time Management 5 - Time is managed well. 3 - Some tasks or responsibility necessary. 1 - Several or the majority of the necessary.	5 – Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent mannerisms. Written materials clear, 3 – Verbal communication and/or writter 1 – Poor quality in spoken or written con inappropriate or inaccurate vocabula Comments: Techniques 5 – Uses techniques and/or methods appr goals and is sensitive to the diversity 3 – Uses limited but adequate techniques 1 – Uses techniques and/or methods that student learning styles and to meet d Comments: Organization of Presentation/Activities 5 – Clearly organized and easy-to-follow 3 – Discernible organizational pattern. 1 – Organizational pattern is not clearly comments: Time Management 5 – Time is managed well. 3 – Some tasks or responsibilities utilize necessary. 1 – Several or the majority of tasks utilize necessary.	mannerisms. Written materials clear, acci 3 – Verbal communication and/or written ma 1 – Poor quality in spoken or written communinappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Comments: Techniques 1 5 – Uses techniques and/or methods appropriagoals and is sensitive to the diversity of v 3 – Uses limited but adequate techniques and 1 – Uses techniques and/or methods that are is student learning styles and to meet depart Comments: Organization of Presentation/Activities 1 5 – Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patt 3 – Discernible organizational pattern. 1 – Organizational pattern is not clearly discended to the comments: Time Management 1 5 – Time is managed well. 3 – Some tasks or responsibilities utilize morn necessary. 1 – Several or the majority of tasks utilize morn necessary.	5 - Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent and appropriate mannerisms. Written materials clear, accurate a 3 - Verbal communication and/or written materials 1 - Poor quality in spoken or written communication inappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Comments: Techniques 1 2 5 - Uses techniques and/or methods appropriate for goals and is sensitive to the diversity of various 3 - Uses limited but adequate techniques and/or methods that are inadeq student learning styles and to meet department and the s	5 - Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent and appropriate we mannerisms. Written materials clear, accurate and fitt 3 - Verbal communication and/or written materials of average and 1 - Poor quality in spoken or written communication, lack inappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Comments: Techniques 1 2 3 5 - Uses techniques and/or methods appropriate for meeting goals and is sensitive to the diversity of various student 3 - Uses limited but adequate techniques and/or methods 1 - Uses techniques and/or methods that are inadequate to student learning styles and to meet department goals. Comments: Organization of Presentation/Activities 1 2 3 5 - Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patterns. 3 - Discernible organizational pattern. 1 - Organizational pattern is not clearly discernible. Comments: Time Management 1 2 3 5 - Time is managed well. 3 - Some tasks or responsibilities utilize more time than to necessary. 1 - Several or the majority of tasks utilize more time than necessary.	5 – Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent and appropriate vocabumannerisms. Written materials clear, accurate and fitting to a 3 – Verbal communication and/or written materials of average q 1 – Poor quality in spoken or written communication, lacks enthinappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Comments: Techniques 1 2 3 4 5 – Uses techniques and/or methods appropriate for meeting the goals and is sensitive to the diversity of various student learn 3 – Uses limited but adequate techniques and/or methods for the 1 – Uses techniques and/or methods that are inadequate to addrestudent learning styles and to meet department goals. Comments: Organization of Presentation/Activities 1 2 3 4 5 – Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patterns. 3 – Discernible organizational pattern. 1 – Organizational pattern is not clearly discernible. Comments: Time Management 1 2 3 4 5 – Time is managed well. 3 – Some tasks or responsibilities utilize more time than that allonecessary. 1 – Several or the majority of tasks utilize more time than that allonecessary.	5 - Models clear, enthusiastic, excellent and appropriate vocabulary armannerisms. Written materials clear, accurate and fitting to the post 3 - Verbal communication and/or written materials of average quality. 1 - Poor quality in spoken or written communication, lacks enthusiasm inappropriate or inaccurate vocabulary. Comments: Techniques 1 2 3 4 5 5 - Uses techniques and/or methods appropriate for meeting the depart goals and is sensitive to the diversity of various student learning st 3 - Uses limited but adequate techniques and/or methods for the positi 1 - Uses techniques and/or methods that are inadequate to address the student learning styles and to meet department goals. Comments: Organization of Presentation/Activities 1 2 3 4 5 5 - Clearly organized and easy-to-follow patterns. 3 - Discernible organizational pattern. 1 - Organizational pattern is not clearly discernible. Comments: Time Management 1 2 3 4 5 Time is managed well. 3 - Some tasks or responsibilities utilize more time than that allocated necessary. 1 - Several or the majority of tasks utilize more time than that allotted necessary.

 5 – Accurately and completely maintain mandated technology. 3 – Adequately maintains student recort technology. 1 – Insufficiently maintains student recortechnology. 	rds utilizing department mandated		
Comments:			
H. Overall Assessment of Performance (Must be the true mathematical average	e of the above ratings A-G)		
Additional Comments by Evaluator:			
Signature of Evaluator:	Date:		
Signature of Evaluatee:Date:			
Signature of Department Chair:	Date:		
Signature of Instructional Dean:	Date:		

N/A

G. Student Records

Note: Evaluatee's signature does not necessarily imply agreement. It is merely an acknowledgment that the complete report has been read. Evaluatee may submit a written response within ten calendar days of receipt of this evaluation report. The written statement will be filed with this classroom visitation report.

APPENDIX F: STUDENT EVALUATION SURVEY

College of the Canyons Student Evaluation Survey

Dear Student: The purpose of this survey is to obtain information on how we can improve our courses. To accomplish this, we are asking that you complete this survey and return it in the envelope provided. Your participation is voluntary and every effort will be made to keep your responses confidential. We greatly appreciate your assistance! If you are completing this survey online, please follow the directions that were emailed to you.

Pl	ease	fill in marks like this:							
Se	emest		ourse itle:						
Se	ection	#: Instructor Name:							
1.	Org	ganization of course curriculum:		Strongly Agree	Agree	Neutral 3	Disagree 2	Strongly Disagree	Not Applicable
	a.	Goals and objectives are clearly communicated to students.	o	0	0	0	0	0	0
2.		Key points are conveyed successfully. Material is presented in a logical order. tructor's behavior, performance, and classroom		O O Strongly	O O	O O	0 0	O O Strongly	O O Not
	ma a.	Instructor uses a variety of teaching methods to		Agree 5	Agree 4	Neutral 3	Disagree ²	Disagree O	Applicable O
	1.	effectively deliver course material (e.g., videos, PowerPoints, discussion forums, group work, lectures, class activities).	.1	0	0	0	0	0	0
	b. с.	Instructor encourages students to engage in critic thinking. Instructor has structured the class in a manner the establishes a good learning environment.		0	0	0	0	0	0
	d.	Instructor uses the entire class period efficiently a effectively (for an online class, mark not applical	and	0	0	0	0	0	0
	e.	Instructor responds to questions and grades assignments in a timely manner.		0	Ο	Ο	Ο	0	0
	f.	Instructor facilitates and encourages online communication between students (for a face to faclass, mark not applicable).	ice						
3.	Ins	tructor's interpersonal skills:		Strongly Agree		Neutral 3	Disagree 2	Strongly Disagree	Not Applicable
		In the test to the second of t		0	0	0	0	0	0
	a.	Instructor demonstrates a caring for student's success with feedback provided.		0	0	0	0	0	0
	b. c.	Instructor demonstrates respect for students. Instructor demonstrates sensitivity to student		0	0	0	0	0	0
	С.	diversity.							

Thank you for your partic	ipation in th	is importar	nt survey!			
Class materials (textbooks, syllabi, CD-ROMs, videos, etc.):	Strongly Agree	Agree	Neutral 3	Disagree 2	Strongly Disagree	Not Applicable
 The syllabus is well organized and easy to follow. 	0	0	0	0	0	Ο
b. Class materials are useful resources in the course.	0	0	0	0	0	0
c. The course materials in Canvas are clearly organized and easy to navigate (if course does not use Canvas, mark not applicable).	0	Ο	Ο	0	0	0
, 11	Strongly				Strongly	Not
Grading and assignments (exams, homework, quizzes, and other instruments for grading):	Agree 5	Agree 4	Neutral 3	Disagree 2	Disagree	Applicable
a. Instructor gives helpful comments on assignments completed by students.	0	0	0	0	0	0
b. Instructor clearly explains methods of assigning grades.	0	0	0	0	0	0
c. Assignments and exams relate closely to covered	0	0	0	0	0	0

0

Strongly

Agree

0

0

0

0

0

Agree

0

0

O

0

0

Neutral

0

0

0

0

0

Disagree

0

0

0

0

0

Strongly

Disagree

0

0

0

0

Not

Applicable

0

0

0

0

Comments

material.

is fair.

Level of course challenge:

campus or online)

Grading system is applied fairly.

I am learning a lot in this class.

d. I found this delivery format effective (on

Overall, the amount of work required in this class

Material is challenging, yet mastery is attainable.

4.

5.

Please provide any additional comments you may have regarding the course or the instructor's teaching style or professionalism.

Student Evaluation Survey 3/25/16

APPENDIX G: DISTRICT-COMPENSATED COMMITTEES

Per Article 11.B.5, the District will compensate Unit Members (one per committee/team) at the non-instructional rate per the adjunct salary schedule € for service on the following committees:

- Accreditation Committee and Team(s)
- Educational Technology Committee
- Enrollment Management Committee
- Health and Safety Committee
- President's Advisory Council on Budget
- Curriculum Committee

Unit members will submit a timesheet to the administrative committee chair or co-chair after each meeting. The administrative chair or co-chair will be responsible for ensuring adjunct compensation while serving on the above committees.

APPENDIX H: SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS COMPENSATION

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS COMPENSATION 2016-2017

Beginning Fall 2016, scheduled office hours will be compensated as per Article 21. Unscheduled office hours will not be compensated. Scheduled office hours may be verified by the instructional dean.

Half of the office hours for a course must be conducted on a regular schedule, either on the campus (or site) where the course is scheduled or through virtual means. This portion of the office hours will be considered "scheduled office hours".

On-Campus (or Site) Units per week	Number of Scheduled Office Hours (minutes)	Number of Unscheduled Office Hours (minutes)	Total Office Hours per Week (minutes)
3	30	30	60
4	40	40	80
5	50	50	100
6	60	60	120
7	70	70	140
8	80	80	160
9	90	90	180
10	100	100	200
11	110	110	220
12	120	120	240
13	120	120	240
14	130	130	260
15	140	140	280
16	150	150	300

 $\frac{Compensation\ for\ Scheduled\ Office\ Hours\ Adjunct\ (Hourly)\ Faculty}{\$20.00\ /\ Hour}$

APPENDIX H: SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS COMPENSATION

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICTCOLLEGE OF THE CANYONS SCHEDULED OFFICE HOURS COMPENSATION2017-2018

Beginning Fall 2017, scheduled office hours will be compensated as per Article 20. Unscheduled office hours will not be compensated. Scheduled office hours may be verified by the instructional dean.

Half of the office hours for a course must be conducted on a regular schedule, either on the campus (or site) where the course is scheduled or through virtual means. This portion of the office hours will be considered "scheduled office hours".

On-Campus (or	Number of	Number of	Total Office Hours
Site) Units per week	Scheduled Office	Unscheduled Office	per Week (minutes)
	Hours (minutes)	Hours (minutes)	
3	30	30	60
4	40	40	80
5	50	50	100
6	60	60	120
7	70	70	140
8	80	80	160
9	90	90	180
10	100	100	200
11	110	110	220
12	120	120	240
13	120	120	240
14	130	130	260
15	140	140	280
16	150	150	300

Compensation for Scheduled Office Hours Adjunct (Hourly) Faculty \$40.00 / Hour

APPENDIX I: AFT TOTAL COMPENSATION CALCULATIONS

10/9/2020 9:17



AFT Total Compensation Calculation FY 2018-19

Salaries - All Funds (2018-19 Adopted Budget)		
Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$ 10,054,138
Non-Credit Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$ 607,000
Adjunct Summer School		\$ 1,743,000
Non-Credit Adjunct Summer School		\$ 71,000
Adjunct Winter Intercession		\$ 819,000
Non-Credit Adjunct Winter Intercession		\$ 16,000
Adjunct Counselors		\$ 609,452
Adjunct Librarians		\$ 82,865
Adjunct Flex		\$ 255,000
Adjunct Substitute		\$ 101,000
Total Salaries (Total Compensation)		\$ 14,358,455
Total Compensation Allocation:	3.71%	\$ 532,699
Additional Compensation - 2018-19 Budget		
Step Increases	0.75%	\$ 107,352
<u>Cost Proposals</u>		
Total Compensation Allocation (On-Going)	3.71%	\$ 532,699
Will be used for Salary Schedule reform	0.00%	
FY 2020-21	0.00%	
F1 2020-21	0.00%	
	0.00%	
Tetal Cont Burnardo	_	# 500 000
Total Cost Proposals	3.71%	\$ 532,699
Balance Available for Salary Schedule Increase	3.71%	\$ 532,699
Salary Schedule % Increase		3.71%



AFT

Total Compensation Calculation FY 2019-20

Salaries - All Funds (2019-20 Adopted		
Budget)		
Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$ 9,905,779
Non-Credit Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$ 644,019
Adjunct Summer School		\$ 1,598,540
Non-Credit Adjunct Summer School		\$ 75,596
Adjunct Winter Intercession		\$ 802,808
Non-Credit Adjunct Winter Intercession		\$ 19,684
Adjunct Counselors		\$ 1,083,727
Adjunct Librarians		\$ 82,865
Adjunct Flex		\$ 255,000
Adjunct Substitute		\$ 99,023
Total Salaries (Total Compensation)		\$ 14,567,041
Total Compensation Allocation:	2.00%	\$ 291,341
Additional Compensation - 2019-		
20 Budget		
Step Increases	0.85%	\$ 124,129
Cost Proposals		
Total Compensation Allocation (On-Going)	2.00%	\$ 291,341
(This will be paid for by unfunding Classified	0.00%	
Administrator Position 100100-CM01 and Educational	0.00%	
Administrator Position 601000-AM03)	0.00%	
Will be used for Salary Schedule Reform beginning		
FY 2020-21	0.00%	
Total Cost Proposals	2.00%	\$ 291,341
Balance Available for Salary Schedule	2.00%	\$ 291,341
Increase	2.00 /0	
Salary Schedule % Increase		2.00%

			10/26/2022 8:13
COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS	AFT		
COLLEGE OF THE CANTOINS	Total Compensation Calculation		
	•		
	FY 2020-21		
Salaries - All Funds (2020-21 Ado	pted Budget)		0.500.440
Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$	9,500,446
Non-Credit Adjunct Fall/Spring		\$	593,637
Adjunct Summer School		\$	1,741,966
Non-Credit Adjunct Summer School		\$	205,474
Adjunct Winter Intercession		\$	680,020
Non-Credit Adjunct Winter Intercess	ion	\$	46,218
Adjunct Counselors		\$	1,305,432
Adjunct Librarians		\$	37,500
Adjunct Flex		\$	255,000
Adjunct Substitute		<u>\$</u>	126,000
Total Salaries (Total Compensation	on)	\$	14,491,693
Total Compensation Allocation:		0.00% \$	-
Additional Compensation - 2020)-21 Budget		
		0.73	\$ 106,149
Step Increases			
Cost Proposals		0.00% \$	-
Total Compensation Allocation (On-Going)		
Total Cost Proposals		0.00% \$	-
Deleges Aveilable for Octor Octor	hadula laggara		
Balance Available for Salary Sc	nedule increase	0.00%	% \$
		U.UU7	70 \$ 0.00
Oalam Oaka dula Milaasa			0.00
Salary Schedule % Increase			



AFT

Total Compensation Calculation

FY 2021-22

Salaries - All Funds (2021-22 Tentative	Budget)
------------------------	-------------------	---------

Adjunct Fall/Spring	\$	9,300,446
Non-Credit Adjunct Fall/Spring	\$	593,637
Adjunct Summer School	\$	1,716,966
Non-Credit Adjunct Summer School	\$	205,474
Adjunct Winter Intercession	\$	655,020
Non-Credit Adjunct Winter Intercession	\$	46,218
Adjunct Counselors	\$	1,231,365
Adjunct Librarians	\$	82,865
Adjunct Flex	\$	255,000
Adjunct Substitute	<u>\$</u>	126,000
Total Salaries (Total Compensation)	\$	14,212,991

Total Compensation Allocation: 5.26% \$ 747,603

Additional Compensation - 2021-22 Budget

0.76% \$ 108,158

Step Increases

Cost Proposals	0.00% \$	747,603
Total Compensation Allocation (On-Going)		
Total Cost Proposals	0.00%	\$ 747,603

Balance Available for Salary Schedule Increase

0.00% \$ 747,603

5.26%

Salary Schedule %Increase

APPENDIX J: DOCUMENTS TO FINALIZE NEGOTIATIONS FOR 2018-2019 AND 2019-2020

Santa Clarita Community College District American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6262 Tentative Agreement

October 8, 2020

This is a tentative agreement between the Santa Clarita Community College District and the American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6262.

The following changes are agreed upon to modify the collective bargaining agreement between Santa Clarita Community College District and American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6262 regarding language in Article 10: Total Compensation for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 contract years. This agreement will complete negotiations for the 2018-19 and 2019-20 contract years.

ARTICLE 10: TOTAL COMPENSATION

The Santa Clarita Community College District employs a Total Compensation Model with regard to employee salary and benefits.

- A. Unit members shall be paid for teaching assignments on a per course basis using the contact hours associated with the assignment.
- B. Adjunct faculty salaries for teaching credit courses, and enhanced noncredit courses, and providing counseling and librarian services are implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule and all the terms included on the schedule. (Appendix A, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section A).
 - 1. For 2018-2019 adjustments to the Adjunct Salary Schedules 7, 8, and 9 will be 3.71% effective July 1, 2018.
 - 2. For 2019-2020 adjustments to the Adjunct Salary Schedules 7, 8, and 9 will be 2.00% effective July 1, 2019.
 - 3. Effective July 1, 2020 new salary schedules 10, 11, and 12 will be implemented.
 - 4. All adjunct faculty are initially placed on Step 1 of the applicable Adjunct Salary Schedule based on their educational achievement in accordance with Appendix A. Advancement to Step 2, and any step thereafter, of the Adjunct Salary Schedule requires that a unit member completes 2 semesters of service (excluding summer and intersessions). Each step increase is 1%. Salary scales are rounded to the nearest cent per standard rounding methods. Advancement will apply to the next fall or spring semester of employment. Service credit on the credit adjunct scale does not affect placement on the non-credit, non-enhanced salary schedule. Service credit is earned independently on each salary schedule.
 - 5. For column advancement, unit members must provide official transcripts to Human

- Resources. Once verified, the advancement will apply to the next fall or spring semester of employment.
- 6. An adjunct faculty rate of pay for teaching credit courses, and enhanced noncredit courses, and providing counseling and librarian services is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (Appendix 10, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section A, and Table A.).
- 7. A noncredit adjunct faculty rate of pay for teaching non-enhanced, non-credit courses is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (*Appendix 11, Adjunct Salary Schedule Section B, and Table B*). The hourly rate of pay applies to noncredit faculty as defined in Article 21: Noncredit Faculty.
- 8. A noncredit TLC (The Learning Center) adjunct faculty rate of pay is implemented in accordance with the Adjunct Salary Schedule (Appendix 12 Adjunct Salary Schedule Section C, and Table C).
- C. A non-instructional rate of pay of 65% of a unit member's current rate of pay shall apply towards District requested and administrator approved non-instructional activities. Approved non-instructional activities include but are not limited to: curriculum development, required attendance at conferences/workshops/training sessions as a participant or presenter, proctoring and grading assessments beyond what is required for assigned classes, and requested service on specific committees.
- D. Additionally, elected adjunct senators serving on the Academic Senate will receive the non-instructional rate of pay for attending Academic Senate meetings.
- E. Scheduled office hours will be compensated at \$40 per scheduled office hour. Payment of scheduled office hours for full semester-length fall and spring classes will be made in 5 equal payments during the fall and spring semesters after the Dean has verified that office hours have been performed and posted appropriately. Office hours associated with compressed courses will be paid during their normally scheduled pay periods. Unit members will not be compensated for unscheduled office hours. However, if the District receives State reimbursement for office hours in excess of the amount paid for scheduled office hours, the District will distribute the surplus to compensate unit members for unscheduled office hours.
- F. The District will use On Base to preauthorize and make payments for Supplementary Services for Adjunct members.
- G. It is the responsibility of the Unit Members to notify the Office of Human Resources as soon as they discover any error in placement on the salary schedule. Errors discovered either by the Unit Member or by the District will, in every case, be recovered to the extent allowed by law either by the District or by the Unit Member.
- H. <u>Health Benefits</u>: AFT and the District will continue to work together to find a health benefit plan that would provide part-time faculty access at no cost to the District. If and when a plan is in place, the District will reimburse adjunct faculty members for that percentage that the District is actually reimbursed by the State of California.

I. Pay Parity:

- 1. Definition: When professional development, participation on college committees, office hours, developing and reviewing curriculum, attendance at meetings, peer evaluation, participation in the hiring process, and other activities are excluded, parity is defined as 75%.
- 2. Computation of Parity Pay: Parity pay is based on a comparison of the adjunct salary schedule to the full-time academic salary schedule. Parity shall then be determined by adjusting the salary at the corresponding column and step to equate to 75%. The hourly compensation level for each hour shall then be determined by dividing the adjusted salary by 525 (15 hours of instruction per week x 35 weeks).

The District and AFT agree that parity is important to maintain high quality instructors, thus ensuring student success. The District agrees that when it receives State funds designated for the achievement of parity, the District will contact AFT within 7 calendar days and will work with AFT to ensure that the funds are equitably distributed to the adjunct instructors.

- J. Human Resources will add a hyperlink to the District's Human Resources website where unit members can find information about loan forgiveness programs.
- K. Step increases will occur once per year and will become effective once the District has received notification of the final amount of the annual COLA increase. If the annual COLA increase for a given year is not sufficient to cover the total amount of the annual step increases for that year, then the step advancements will not occur for that year.
- L. If upon initial placement on the new salary scale a member would receive less than their current rate of pay, that member will be placed on a step that will ensure at least a 1% pay increase.

The above is agreed to by both the District and AFT.

Diane M. Fiero	Oct 8, 2020
For Santa Clarita Community College District	Date
Dan Portillo Dan Portillo (Oct 8, 2020 20:09 PDT)	Oct 8, 2020
For American Federation of Teachers (AFT) Local 6262	Date

AFT Negotiations

2020-2021 New Salary Schedule Placement Information

- 1. Beginning FY 2020-21, use the 5.71% or \$824,040 to create new salary schedules
- 2. Proposed Salary Schedule:
 - a. Four Columns
 - i. Column 1 Master's Degree (Column 1 step 1 increased by 7.8% from Current Schedule)
 - ii. Column 2 Master's Degree w/ Skilled Teaching Certificate (4% above Column 1)
 - iii. Column 3 Doctorate Degree (10% above Column 1)
 - iv. Column 4 Doctorate Degree w/ Skilled Teaching Certificate (14% above Column 1)
 - b. Twenty Steps
 - i. Step 1 Brand New Adjunct (Column 1 step 1 increased by 7.8% from Current Schedule)
 - ii. Step 2 After completion of 2 semesters (1% above step 1)
 - iii. Step 3 After completion of 2 semesters on Step 2 (1% above step 2)
 - iv. Step 4-20 After completion of 2 semesters on previous step (1% increase for each step)
 - c. Hold Harmless Provision
 - i. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 9 would be in column B step 3 5 will be moved to Column B step 7 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - ii. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 9 would be in column B step 6 9 will be placed in column B step 10 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - iii. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 9 would be in column D step 3 5 will be moved to Column B step 8 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - iv. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 9 would be in column D step 6 10 will be placed in column B step 11 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - v. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 8 would be in column B step 3 or 4 will be moved to Column B step 5 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - vi. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 8 would be in column D step 3 or 4 will be moved to Column B step 5 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - vii. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 7 would be in column B step 3 or 4 will be moved to Column B step 5 to ensure at least 1% increase.
 - viii. Any adjunct whose initial placement on Schedule 7 would be in column D step 3 or 4 will be moved to Column B step 5 to ensure at least 1% increase.
- 3. Cost of Implementing new salary schedule, with 20 steps, for first year \$824,422
 - a. \$781,244 for Implementation
 - b. \$43,178 for Hold Harmless

APPENDIX A: COLUMN PLACEMENT GUIDELINES SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS

Effective July 1, 2020

Section A. (See Table A for hourly rates) - Initial Column Placement for Credit Adjunct Faculty and Enhanced Noncredit Faculty

Disciplines Requiring the Master's Degree

Column A	1. Master's Degree	
	2. California Community College Credential	
	3. Equivalency	
Column B	Column A and the completion of a District approved	
	Skilled Teacher Program (STP).	
Column C	Doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.)	
Column D	Doctorate and the completion of a District approved STP	

Disciplines in Which a Master's Degree is Not Generally Expected or Available

Column A	1. Associate of Arts Degree and six years' experience in	
	that discipline with any certificate or license required to do	
	that work.	
	2. Bachelor's Degree and two years' experience in that	
	discipline with any certificate or license required to do that	
	work.	
	3. California Community College Credential	
	4. Equivalency	
Column B	Column A and the completion of a District approved	
	Skilled Teacher Program (STP).	
Column C	Doctorate (Ph.D., J.D., Ed.D., etc.)	
Column D	Doctorate and the completion of a District approved STP	

Section B. (See Table B for hourly rates) - Initial Column Placement for Noncredit Adjunct Faculty

Column A	Noncredit Adjunct with a Bachelor's Degree
Column B	Noncredit Adjunct with a Bachelor's Degree and the completion of a District
	approved Skilled Teacher Program (STP).
Column C	Noncredit Adjunct with a Master's Degree
Column D	Noncredit Adjunct with a Master's Degree and the completion of a District
	approved STP.

Section C. (See Table C for hourly rates) -Initial Column Placement for Noncredit TLC Adjunct Faculty

Column A	Noncredit TLC Adjunct with a Bachelor's Degree Column B
	Noncredit TLC Adjunct with a Bachelor's Degree and the
	completion of a District approved Skilled Teacher Program (STP).
Column C	Noncredit TLC Adjunct with a Master's Degree
Column D	Noncredit TLC Adjunct with a Master's Degree and the completion of a District
	approved STP.

2017 - 2020 AGREEMENT SIGNATURE PAGE

SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT COLLEGE OF THE CANYONS

2017-2020 AFT AGREEMENT

This Agreement made and entered into on June 27, 2018, by and between the Santa Clarita Community College District ("District") and the Part-Time Faculty United, American Federation of Teachers, Local 6262 ("AFT") is as printed.

RATIFIED

PART TME FACULTY UNITED AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TEACHERS, LOCAL 626 SANTA CLARITA COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT

X	X Deane pero
Dan M. Portillo Authorized Representative	Dr. Diane Fiero Authorized Representative
July 8, 2018	July 9, 2018
Date	Date